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Creating a Home for Success for our students 
is what drives us. Creating the best home for 
all students, helping them grow and succeed 
at University and beyond. 

We deliver this through having quality people, 
quality service and quality properties, and 
behaving in line with our values.

Quality homes
We use our unique insight and experience to deliver quality, secure 
homes where students can develop academically and socially. 
Going to University is an exciting time, but the big changes moving to 
University brings can be stressful. We design our homes and services to 
ensure the transition from home to University is as smooth as possible.  
Our research shows that students that feel well integrated into their new 
environment are better equipped to manage the changes University 
brings and get the most from it.

For all students…
We understand not everyone is the same and University experience is 
unique. We create an environment where everyone can be at home and 
make the choices that are right for them. Social integration is a key focus 
of our property and service design. 
We offer a variety of accommodation at different price points and 
with different payment options enabling students to choose the right 
accommodation for them. We also support the Unite Foundation, which 
provides accommodation scholarships to young people who have been 
in care or are estranged from their families.

Helping them grow 
and succeed…
University is where young people build the foundation of the future 
they want. We believe we have an important role in helping 
them achieve this. 
The interpersonal and self-management skills honed at University provide 
a critical bridge to adulthood. We believe employability is important and 
work to provide our students with the tools for a successful future. We aim 
to create a safe and secure environment that is both caring and 
supportive, but allows our students to develop their independence.

At University and beyond…
We believe that where a student lives has a material impact on their 
academic and social experience of University, and ultimately, their lives. 
Through our people, our service and our properties, we are constantly 
looking for new and better ways to support students to become well-
equipped adults, ready for life after University. We regularly measure  
how well we are meeting student needs through customer surveys and 
focus groups.

Work together
Be better
Do what’s right

See it through
Have fun

 �Read more about 
Our values p08 and 09
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What makes us different 
Our quality properties and unique 
University relationships, supported by 
highly-trained people, utilising a tailor-
made service platform set us apart from 
the competition.

 �Read more about 
what makes us different on p06

Environmental, social 
impact and governance
Being a responsible business is central to 
everything we do at Unite.

 �Read more on 
environment, social impact and 
governance on p46

Our values and culture
It’s not just about what we do, it’s how 
we do it. Our values and culture make 
Unite a great place to work. 

 �Read more about 
values and culture on p08 and p09
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2019

2,390
new beds

2020

2,973
new beds

Skelhorne, Liverpool (Wholly owned) 
1,085 beds
Cowley, Oxford (Wholly owned) 
887 beds
Battery Park (USAF) 
418 beds

Constitution Street, Aberdeen 
(Wholly owned) 
600 beds
Tower North, Leeds (Wholly owned) 
1,019 beds
New Wakefield Street, Manchester 
(Wholly owned) 
603 beds
Old BRI, Bristol (Wholly owned) 
751 beds

85%
of our portfolio is aligned to high 
and mid-ranking Universities

2021

1,000
new beds

Middlesex Street, London (Wholly owned) 
1,000 beds

 �Read more in our 
property review on p36

























































































































































































































 

 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Rental income 2.4 99.7 97.1 
Property sales and other income 2.4 19.6 23.6 
Total revenue  119.3 120.7 
Cost of sales 2.4 (41.1) (44.9) 
Operating expenses  (26.9) (25.0) 
Results from operating activities  51.3 50.8 
Profit on disposal of property  0.6 0.4 
Net valuation gains on property 3.1 103.1 77.2 
Profit before net financing costs  155.0 128.4 
    
Loan interest and similar charges 4.3 (17.3) (20.9) 
Swap cancellation and loan break costs 4.3 (11.5) (1.0) 
Finance costs 4.3 (28.8) (21.9) 
Finance income 4.3 0.1 0.1 
Net financing costs 4.3 (28.7) (21.8) 
Share of joint venture profit 3.4b 103.1 94.8 
Profit before tax  229.4 201.4 
    
Current tax 2.5 (1.7) (2.3) 
Deferred tax 2.5 (3.9) 27.3 
Profit for the year  223.8 226.4 
Profit for the year attributable to    
Owners of the parent company 2.2c 221.6 224.0 
Minority interest  2.2 2.4 
  223.8 226.4 
Earnings per share    
Basic 2.2c 95.3p 101.3p 
Diluted 2.2c 93.6p 94.7p 

All results are derived from continuing activities. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the year ended 31 December 2017 

 Note 
2017  

£m 
2016  

£m 

Profit for the year  223.8 226.4 
    
Movements in effective hedges 4.2 10.8 (9.2) 
Deferred tax in relation to movements in effective hedges 2.5d – (1.1) 
Share of joint venture movements in effective hedges  3.4b 2.1 (1.4) 
Deferred tax in relation to share of joint venture movements in effective hedges 2.5d  – (0.5) 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  12.9 (12.2) 
Total comprehensive income for the year  236.7 214.2 
    
Attributable to    
Owners of the parent company  234.5 211.8 
Minority interest  2.2 2.4 
  236.7 214.2 

All other comprehensive income may be classified as profit and loss in the future.  

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
For the year ended 31 December 2017 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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 Note 
2017  

£m 
2016  

£m 

Assets    
Investment property 3.1 1,261.4 1,061.6 
Investment property under development 3.1 205.7 184.6 
Investment in joint ventures 3.4b 793.5 692.9 
Other non-current assets 3.3 32.4 29.8 
Total non-current assets  2,293.0 1,968.9 
    
Inventories 3.2 4.5 2.9 
Trade and other receivables 5.2 82.9 77.9 
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 51.2 42.7 
Total current assets  138.6 123.5 
Total assets  2,431.6 2,092.4 
    
Liabilities    
Borrowings 4.1 (1.3) (1.3) 
Trade and other payables 5.4 (152.1) (123.7) 
Current tax liability  (4.1) (2.4) 
Total current liabilities  (157.5) (127.4) 
    
Borrowings  4.1 (511.5) (473.5) 
Interest rate swaps 4.2 (0.8) (11.6) 
Deferred tax liability 2.5d (7.6) (4.4) 
Total non-current liabilities  (519.9) (489.5) 
Total liabilities  (677.4) (616.9) 
    
Net assets  1,754.2 1,475.5 
    
Equity    
Issued share capital 4.8 60.2 55.5 
Share premium 4.8 579.5 493.6 
Merger reserve  40.2 40.2 
Retained earnings  1,051.2 867.9 
Hedging reserve  (2.1) (15.0) 
Equity portion of convertible instrument 4.1  – 9.4 
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company  1,729.0 1,451.6 
Minority interest  25.2 23.9 
Total equity  1,754.2 1,475.5 

These financial statements of The Unite Group plc, registered number 03199160, were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 February 
2018 and were signed on its behalf by: 

R S Smith J J Lister 
Director Director 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
At 31 December 2017 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2017
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 Note 
2017  

£m 
2016  

£m 

Assets    
Investments in subsidiaries 3.5 926.6 725.4 
Total investments  926.6 725.4 
    
Loan to group undertaking 3.5 90.0 179.9 
Total non-current assets  1,016.6 905.3 
    
Amounts due from group undertakings 5.2 912.1 686.4 
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1  – – 
Total current assets  912.1 686.4 
Total assets  1,928.7 1,591.7 
    
Current liabilities    
Borrowings 4.1 (2.9) (0.1) 
Amounts due to group undertakings 5.4 (2.5) (1.3) 
Other payables 5.4 (3.2) (3.0) 
Current tax liability  –  – 
Total current liabilities  (8.6) (4.4) 
    
Borrowings 4.1 (267.6) (175.3) 
Total non-current liabilities  (267.6) (175.3) 
Total liabilities  (276.2) (179.7) 
    
Net assets  1,652.5 1,412.0 
    
Equity    
Issued share capital  60.2 55.5 
Share premium  579.5 493.6 
Merger reserve  40.2 40.2 
Retained earnings  972.6 813.3 
Equity portion of intercompany loan   – 9.4 
Total equity  1,652.5 1,412.0 

Total equity is wholly attributable to equity holders of The Unite Group plc. 

These financial statements of The Unite Group plc, registered number 03199160, were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 February 
2018 and were signed on its behalf by: 

R S Smith J J Lister 
Director Director 
  

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET 
At 31 December 2017 

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2017
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Issued  
share capital  

£m 

Share  
premium  

£m 

Merger  
reserve  

£m 

Retained 
earnings  

£m 

Hedging  
reserve  

£m 

Equity portion of 
convertible 
instrument  

£m 

Attributable  
to owners  

of the parent  
£m 

Minority  
interest  

£m 
Total  

£m 

At 1 January 2017  55.5 493.6 40.2 867.9 (15.0) 9.4 1,451.6 23.9 1,475.5 
           
Profit for the year   –  –  – 221.6  –  – 221.6 2.2 223.8 
Other comprehensive 
income for the year   –  –  –  – 12.9  – 12.9  – 12.9 
Total comprehensive 
income for the year   –  –  – 221.6 12.9  – 234.5 2.2 236.7 
Shares issued  4.7 83.0  –  –  –  – 87.7  – 87.7 
Deferred tax on share 
based payments   –  –  – 0.7  –  – 0.7  – 0.7 
Fair value of share based 
payments   –  –  – 1.5  –  – 1.5  – 1.5 
Redemption of 
convertible bond   – 2.9  – 5.8  – (9.4) (0.7)  – (0.7) 
Own shares acquired   –  –  – (1.9)  –  – (1.9)  – (1.9) 
Dividends paid to owners 
of the parent company   –  –  – (44.4)  –  – (44.4)  – (44.4) 
Dividends to minority 
interest   –  –  –  –  –  –  – (0.9) (0.9) 
At 31 December 2017  60.2 579.5 40.2 1,051.2 (2.1)  – 1,729.0 25.2 1,754.2 
 

  

Issued  
share capital  

£m 

Share  
premium  

£m 

Merger  
reserve  

£m 

Retained 
earnings  

£m 

Hedging  
reserve  

£m 

Equity portion of 
convertible 
instrument  

£m 

Attributable  
to owners  

of the parent  
£m 

Minority  
interest  

£m 
Total  

£m 

At 1 January 2016  55.5 493.3 40.2 679.5 (2.8) 9.4 1,275.1 22.6 1,297.7 
           
Profit for the year  – – – 224.0 – – 224.0 2.4 226.4 
Other comprehensive loss 
for the year  – – – – (12.2) – (12.2) – (12.2) 
Total comprehensive 
income for the year  – – – 224.0 (12.2) – 211.8 2.4 214.2 
Shares issued  – 0.3 –  – – 0.3 – 0.3 
Deferred tax on share 
based payments  – – – (0.1) – – (0.1) – (0.1) 
Fair value of share based 
payments  – – – 1.2 – – 1.2 – 1.2 
Own shares acquired  – – – (2.5) – – (2.5) – (2.5) 
Dividends paid to owners 
of the parent company  – – – (34.2) – – (34.2) – (34.2) 
Dividends to minority 
interest  – – – – – – – (1.1) (1.1) 
At 31 December 2016  55.5 493.6 40.2 867.9 (15.0) 9.4 1,451.6 23.9 1,475.5 

The notes on pages 114 to 154 form part of the financial statements. 

  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES  
IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
For the year ended 31 December 2017 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES  
IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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The notes on pages 114 to 154 form part of the financial statements. 

  

 

Issued  
share capital  

£m 

Share  
premium 

 £m 

Merger 
 reserve  

£m 

Retained  
earnings  

£m 

Equity portion of 
intercompany loan  

£m 
Total  

£m 

At 1 January 2017 55.5 493.6 40.2 813.3 9.4 1,412.0 
       
Profit for the year & other comprehensive income  –  –  – 197.9  – 197.9 
Shares issued 4.7 83.0  –  –  – 87.7 
Redemption of convertible bond  – 2.9  – 5.8 (9.4) (0.7) 
Dividends to shareholders  –  –  – (44.4)  – (44.4) 
At 31 December 2017 60.2 579.5 40.2 972.6  – 1,652.5 

 

Issued  
share capital  

£m 

Share  
premium 

 £m 

Merger 
 reserve  

£m 

Retained  
earnings  

£m 

Equity portion of 
intercompany loan  

£m 
Total  

£m 

At 1 January 2016 55.5 493.3 40.2 633.8 9.4 1,232.2 
       
Profit for the year & other comprehensive income – – – 213.7 – 213.7 
Shares issued – 0.3 – – – 0.3 
Dividends to shareholders – – – (34.2) – (34.2) 
At 31 December 2016 55.5 493.6 40.2 813.3 9.4 1,412.0 

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES  
IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
For the year ended 31 December 2017 
 

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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  Group Company 

 Note 
2017  

£m 
2016  

£m 
2017  

£m 
2016  

£m 

Cash flows from operating activities 5.1 58.4 70.3 (0.3) (2.6) 
      
Cash flows from taxation  (2.1) (2.2) – – 
      
Investing activities      
Proceeds from sale of investment property  30.8 126.1 – – 
Payments to/on behalf of subsidiaries   – – (172.5) (157.4) 
Payments from subsidiaries   – – 39.0 59.1 
Dividends received  31.6 29.2 – 139.3 
Interest received  0.1 0.1 – – 
Investment in joint ventures  (27.0) – – – 
Acquisition of intangible assets  (5.7) (8.2) – – 
Acquisition of property  (116.4) (131.0) – – 
Acquisition of plant and equipment  (4.4) (3.1) – – 
Cash flows from investing activities  (91.0) 13.1 (133.5) 41.0 
      
Financing activities      
Interest paid in respect of financing activities  (23.2) (23.7) (5.8) (5.5) 
Swap cancellation costs  (9.5) (1.0) – – 
Proceeds from the issue of share capital  0.6 0.3 0.6 0.3 
Payments to acquire own shares  (1.9) (2.5) – – 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings  254.0 99.0 178.5 2.3 
Repayment of borrowings  (133.6) (102.3) – – 
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company  (42.3) (34.2) (42.3) (34.2) 
Dividends paid to minority interest  (0.9) (1.1) – – 
Cash flows from financing activities  43.2 (65.5) 131.0 (37.1) 
      
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  8.5 15.7 (2.8) 1.3 
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year  42.7 27.0 (0.1) (1.4) 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5.1 51.2 42.7 (2.9) (0.1) 

 

  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 December 2017 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Section 1: Basis of preparation 

The financial statements consolidate those of The Unite Group plc, (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) 
and include the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities. The parent company financial statements present information about the 
Company as a separate entity and not as a group.  

Both the parent company financial statements and the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRS) and approved by the Directors. On publishing the parent company 
financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the Company is taking advantage of the exemption in s408 of the 
Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement and related notes. 

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements. 

The Company is a public company and is registered in England, United Kingdom, where it is also domiciled. 

Going concern 
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position are set out in the Strategic 
Report on pages 1 to 51. In addition, section 4 of these Notes to the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and 
processes for managing its capital; details of its borrowings and interest rate swaps; and in note 5.3 its exposure to credit risk. 

The Group has prepared cash flow projections three years forward to December 2020 and the Group has sufficient headroom to  
meet all its commitments. The Group secured an investment grade credit rating and arranged a new £500 million unsecured debt facility 
during 2017 and this together with existing facilities will be sufficient to fund the Group’s commitments over the next three years. The Group 
maintains positive relationships with its lending banks and has historically secured new facilities before maturity dates and remained within 
its covenant levels. The Group is in full compliance with its covenants at 31 December 2017 and expects to remain so. Our debt facilities 
include loan-to-value, interest cover and asset class ratio, all of which have a high level of headroom. In order to manage future financial 
commitments, the Group operates a formal approval process, through its Major Investment Approvals committee, to ensure appropriate 
review is undertaken before any transactions are agreed. 

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

Measurement convention 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment property, investment property under development, 
investments in subsidiaries and interest rate swaps all of which are stated at their fair value. 

Basis of consolidation 
Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has an existing right that gives it the current 
ability to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary, has exposure or right to variable returns from its involvement in the subsidiary and has 
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intra-group transactions, such as property disposals 
and management fees, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with 
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s retained interest in the entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealised gains except where the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment in 
the value of fixed assets. 

Impact of accounting standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective 
At the balance sheet date there are a number of new standards and amendments to existing standards in issue but not yet effective, 
the Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers – effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue. 

The Group earns revenue from the following activities (see Note 2.4): 
- Rental income 
- Management fees  
- USAF performance fee 

Based on its assessment to date, the Group does not expect the application of IFRS 15 to result in a significant impact on revenue 
recognition within its consolidated financial statements.  

 
This section lays out the Group’s accounting policies that relate to the financial statements as a whole. Where an accounting 
policy is specific to a particular note to the financial statements, the policy is described in the note to which it relates and has 
been clearly identified in a box.  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Section 1: Basis of preparation continued 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 
IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for 
hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets. 

It is not expected that the transition will have any impact on the carrying value of the relevant assets and liabilities within the consolidated 
financial statements of the Unite Group plc. 

The Group believes that its current hedge relationships will qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of IFRS 9. 

IFRS 16 Leases – effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 
The International Accounting Standards Board issued a new lease standard IFRS 16 to replace existing lease standard (IAS 17) from 
1 January 2019, with early adoption possible before that date for entities that have also early adopted IFRS 15 the new revenue standard 
which comes into effect from 1 January 2018. 

A key change arising from IFRS 16 is that lessees are required to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-
use asset for lease contracts, subject to exceptions for short term leases and leases of low-value assets. 

An initial assessment of the impact of IFRS 16 has been reviewed by management and a number of leases currently in operation within the 
Unite Group plc will fall under the scope of IFRS 16.  

The standard gives the option to either fully restate or recognise an asset equal to the value of the liability on the date of transition.  
The choice of transition method will affect the materiality of the potential impact on adoption of the new standard. 

The Group continues to assess the full impact of IFRS 16 on both IFRS and EPRA measures and intends to adopt the new standard for  
the financial year ending 31 December 2019. The impact of the new standard will depend on the transition approach adopted and the 
contracts in effect at the time of adoption. It is therefore not yet practicable to provide a reliable estimate of the financial impact on the 
Group’s consolidated results. More guidance will be given in the 2018 financial statements. 

Other standards 
The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements: 

- IFRS 2 (amendments) ‘Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction’ 
- IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) ‘Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’ 

Accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.  
It also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.  

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets  
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis with revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and 
in any future periods affected. 

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement of complexity are set out below and are explained in more detail in the related notes 
to the financial statements. 

The areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the financial statements are set out below and in 
more detail in the related notes: 

- valuation of investment property and investment property under development (note 3.1) 

The accounting policy descriptions set out the areas where judgement needs exercising, the most significant of which is as follows: 

- classification of joint venture vehicles (note 3.4) 
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Section 2: Results for the year 

Performance measures 
 Note 2017  2016 

Earnings basic  2.2c £221.6m £224.0m 
Earnings diluted 2.2c £223.0m £227.7m 
Basic earnings per share (pence) 2.2c 95.3p 101.3p 
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 2.2c 93.6p 94.7p 
Net assets basic 2.3c £1,729.0m £1,451.6m 
Basic NAV per share (pence) 2.3d 717p 653p 
 
EPRA performance measures 
 Note 2017  2016 

EPRA earnings 2.2a £70.5m £62.7m 
EPRA earnings per share (pence) 2.2c 30.3p 28.4p 
Adjusted EPRA earnings 2.2a £70.5m £61.3m 
Adjusted EPRA earnings per share (pence) 2.2c 30.3p 27.7p 
EPRA NAV 2.3a £1,740.4m £1,557.3m 
EPRA NAV per share (pence) 2.3d 720p 646p 
EPRA NNNAV  2.3c £1,673.9m £1,517.3m 
EPRA NNNAV per share (pence) 2.3d 692p 630p 

2.1 Segmental information 
The Board of Directors monitors the business along two activity lines, Operations and Property. The reportable segments for the years ended 
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are Operations and Property.  

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property activities directly and through joint ventures with third parties. The joint ventures are an 
integral part of each segment and are included in the information used by the Board to monitor the business.  

The Group’s properties are located exclusively in the United Kingdom. The Group therefore has one geographical segment.  

2.2 Earnings 
EPRA earnings amends IFRS measures by removing principally the unrealised investment property valuation gains and losses such that  
users of the financials are able to see the extent to which dividend payments (dividend per share) are underpinned by earnings arising 
from purely operational activity. The reconciliation between Profit attributable to owners of the parent company and EPRA earnings is 
available in note 2.2 (b). 

The Operations segment manages rental properties, owned directly by the Group or by joint ventures. Its revenues are derived from rental 
income and asset management fees earned from joint ventures. The way in which the Operations segment adds value to the business is 
set out in the Operations review on pages 32 to 35. The Operations segment is the main contributor to EPRA earnings and EPRA EPS and 
these are therefore the key indicators which are used by the Board to monitor the Operations business.  

The Board does not manage or monitor the Operations segment through the balance sheet and therefore no segmental information for 
assets and liabilities is provided for the Operations segment. 

  

 

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group and provides a reconciliation between the primary 
statements and EPRA performance measures. On the following pages you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s  
results for the year, segmental information, taxation, earnings and net asset value per share.  

The Group uses EPRA earnings and NAV movement as key comparable indicators across other real estate companies  
in Europe. 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.2 Earnings continued 
a) EPRA earnings 
2017 

 UNITE Share of joint ventures 

Group on  
EPRA 
 basis  

 
Total 

£m 
USAF 

£m 
LSAV 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Rental income 99.7 36.9 34.2 71.1 170.8 
Property operating expenses  (28.4) (10.2) (5.7) (15.9) (44.3) 
Net operating income 71.3 26.7 28.5 55.2 126.5 
      
Management fees 21.0 (2.9) (4.0) (6.9) 14.1 
Operating expenses (23.9) (0.3) (0.4) (0.7) (24.6) 
      
Operating lease rentals* (12.6)  –  –  – (12.6) 
Net financing costs (17.2) (5.7) (9.7) (15.4) (32.6) 
Operations segment result  38.6 17.8 14.4 32.2 70.8 
      
Property segment result (1.5)  –  –  – (1.5) 

      
Unallocated to segments 2.4 (0.8) (0.4) (1.2) 1.2 
      
EPRA earnings 39.5 17.0 14.0 31.0 70.5 

* Operating lease rentals arise from properties which the Group has sold and is now leasing back. These properties were sold to generate financing and 
they now contribute to the Group’s rental income and incur property operating expenses. Therefore the Group considers these lease costs to be a form 
of financing. 

Included in the above is rental income of £19.9 million and property operating expenses of £7.5 million relating to sale and 
leaseback properties. 

The unallocated to segments balance includes the fair value of share based payments of (£1.5 million), UNITE Foundation of (£0.7 million), 
fees received from USAF relating to acquisitions of £0.9 million, USAF performance fee of £3.4 million (net of adjustment related to trading 
with joint ventures), deferred tax of £0.6 million and current tax charges of (£1.5 million). 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.2 Earnings continued 
a) EPRA earnings continued 
2016 

 UNITE Share of joint ventures 

Group on  
EPRA 
 basis  

 
Total 

£m 
USAF 

£m 
LSAV 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Rental income 97.1 36.9 25.1 62.0 159.1 
Property operating expenses  (29.3) (10.7) (2.8) (13.5) (42.8) 
Net operating income 67.8 26.2 22.3 48.5 116.3 
      
Management fees 20.8 (2.8) (4.0) (6.8) 14.0 
Operating expenses (22.4) (0.4) (0.3) (0.7) (23.1) 
      
Operating lease rentals* (13.5) – – – (13.5) 
Net financing costs (20.8) (5.7) (5.9) (11.6) (32.4) 
Operations segment result  31.9 17.3 12.1 29.4 61.3 
      
Property segment result (1.0) – – – (1.0) 

      
Unallocated to segments 2.4 – – – 2.4 
      
EPRA earnings 33.3 17.3 12.1 29.4 62.7 
      
Yield related USAF performance fees (1.4) – – – (1.4) 
      
Adjusted EPRA earnings 31.9 17.3 12.1 29.4 61.3 

* Operating lease rentals arise from properties which the Group has sold and is now leasing back. These properties were sold to generate financing and 
they now contribute to the Group’s rental income and incur property operating expenses. Therefore the Group considers these lease costs to be a form 
of financing. 

Included in the above is rental income of £18.5 million and property operating expenses of £5.9 million relating to sale and  
leaseback properties. 

The unallocated to segments balance includes the fair value of share based payments of (£1.2 million), UNITE Foundation of (£1.0 million), 
fees received from USAF relating to acquisitions of £0.4 million, net USAF performance fee of £6.5 million, deferred tax of (£0.3 million) and 
current tax charges of (£2.0 million). 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.2 Earnings continued 
b) IFRS reconciliation to EPRA earnings 
EPRA earnings excludes movements relating to changes in values of investment properties and interest rate swaps, profits from the  
disposal of properties and property impairments, which are included in the profit reported under IFRS. EPRA earnings reconcile to the  
profit attributable to owners of the parent company as follows:  

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

EPRA earnings 2.2a 70.5 62.7 
    
Net valuation gains on investment property 3.1 103.1 77.2 
Property disposals and write downs  0.6 0.3 
    
Share of joint venture gains on investment property 3.4b 65.0 58.8 
Share of joint venture property disposals and write downs  0.5 – 
    
Swap cancellation and loan break costs  (11.5) (1.0) 
Share of joint venture swap cancellation costs 3.4b (0.8) – 
    
Deferred tax relating to properties 2.5d (4.5) 27.6 
    
Minority interest share of reconciling items*  (1.3) (1.6) 
Profit attributable to owners of the parent company  221.6 224.0 

 
* The minority interest share, or non-controlling interest, arises as a result of the Company not owning 100% of the share capital of one of its subsidiaries, 

USAF (Feeder) Guernsey Ltd. More detail is provided in note 3.4. 

  

Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements Other information 119

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017



 

 

Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.2 Earnings continued 
c) Earnings per share 
The Basic EPS calculation is based on the earnings attributable to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group plc and the weighted 
average number of shares which have been in issue during the year. Basic EPS is adjusted in line with EPRA guidelines in order to allow users 
to compare the business performance of the Group with other listed real estate companies in a consistent manner and to reflect how the 
business is managed and measured on a day to day basis. EPRA EPS and EPRA EPS pre yield related USAF performance fee are calculated 
using EPRA earnings. 

The calculations of basic and EPRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Earnings    
Basic   221.6 224.0 
Diluted  223.0 227.7 
EPRA 2.2a 70.5 62.7 
Adjusted EPRA (excluding yield related USAF performance fee) 2.2a 70.5 61.3 
Weighted average number of shares (thousands)    
Basic  232,503 221,013 
Dilutive potential ordinary shares (convertible bond and share options)  5,627 19,315 
Diluted  238,130 240,328 
    
Earnings per share (pence)    
Basic  95.3p 101.3p 
Diluted  93.6p 94.7p 
EPRA EPS  30.3p 28.4p 
Adjusted EPRA EPS (excluding yield related USAF performance fee)  30.3p 27.7p 

Movements in the weighted average number of shares have resulted from the issue of shares arising from the employee share based 
payment schemes.  

In 2017 there are no options excluded from the potential dilutive shares. In 2016 there were 16,838 options excluded that did not affect the 
diluted weighted average number of shares. 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.3 Net assets  
EPRA Net Asset Value per share makes adjustments to IFRS measures by principally removing some items that are not expected to 
materialise in normal circumstances like items of deferred tax and the fair value of financial derivatives. The reconciliation between 
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAV is available in note 2.3 (c). 

The Group’s Property business undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The Property segment’s revenue comprises 
revenue from development management fees earned from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segment adds value to the 
business is set out in the property review on pages 36 to 41.  

a) EPRA net assets 
2017 

 UNITE Share of joint ventures Group on EPRA basis 

 
Total 

£m 
USAF 

£m 
LSAV 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Investment properties 1,261.4 538.7 579.3 1,118.0 2,379.4 
Investment properties under development 205.7 10.2 – 10.2 215.9 
Total property portfolio 1,467.1 548.9 579.3 1,128.2 2,595.3 
      
Debt on properties (512.9) (169.5) (212.3) (381.8) (894.7) 
Cash 51.2 25.0 15.6 40.6 91.8 
Net debt (461.7) (144.5) (196.7) (341.2) (802.9) 
      
Other assets/(liabilities) (34.7) (5.2) (12.1) (17.3) (52.0) 
      
EPRA net assets (pre convertible) 970.7 399.2 370.5 769.7 1,740.4 
      
Convertible bond*  – – –  –  – 
      
EPRA net assets 970.7 399.2 370.5 769.7 1,740.4 
      
Loan to value 31% 26% 34% 30% 31% 

 *  During the year Unite redeemed the full principal value of £89.9m of the convertible bond in exchange for 18,593,589 shares. 

2016 

 UNITE Share of joint ventures Group on EPRA basis 

 
Total 

£m 
USAF  

£m 
LSAV 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Investment properties 1,061.6 518.7 504.5 1,023.2 2,084.8 
Investment properties under development 184.6 7.2 – 7.2 191.8 
Total property portfolio 1,246.2 525.9 504.5 1,030.4 2,276.6 
      
Debt on properties (474.8) (173.6) (190.7) (364.3) (839.1) 
Cash 42.7 9.6 13.5 23.1 65.8 
Net debt (432.1) (164.0) (177.2) (341.2) (773.3) 
      
Other assets/(liabilities) (14.6) (9.8) (7.0) (16.8) (31.4) 
      
EPRA net assets (pre convertible) 799.5 352.1 320.3 672.4 1,471.9 
      
Convertible bond 85.4 – – – 85.4 
      
EPRA net assets 884.9 352.1 320.3 672.4 1,557.3 
      
Loan to value 35% 31% 35% 33% 34% 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.3 Net assets continued 
b) Movement in EPRA NAV during the year 
Contributions to EPRA NAV by each segment during the year is as follows: 

2017 

UNITE Share of joint ventures 

Group on  
EPRA 
 basis  

 
Total 

£m 
USAF 

£m 
LSAV 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Operations 38.6 17.8 14.4 32.2 70.8 
Operations segment result      
      
Property      
Rental growth 41.0 10.3 10.0 20.3 61.3 
Yield movement 23.6 11.8 30.8 42.6 66.2 
Disposals and acquisition gains 0.6 (1.2) 1.8 0.6 1.2 
Investment property gains 65.2 20.9 42.6 63.5 128.7 
Development property gains  38.5 0.6  – 0.6 39.1 
Pre-contract/other development costs (1.5)  –  –  – (1.5) 
Total property 102.2 21.5 42.6 64.1 166.3 
      
Unallocated      
Shares issued 87.7  –  –  – 87.7 
Investment in joint ventures (3.7) 8.8 (5.1) 3.7  – 
Convertible bond (85.4)  –  –  – (85.4) 
Dividends paid (44.4)  –  –  – (44.4) 
USAF performance fee 4.0 (0.6)  – (0.6) 3.4 
JV property acquisition fee 1.6 (0.2) (0.5) (0.7) 0.9 
Swap cancellation and debt break costs (11.5)  – (0.8) (0.8) (12.3) 
Other (3.3) (0.2) (0.4) (0.6) (3.9) 
Total unallocated (55.0) 7.8 (6.8) 1.0 (54.0) 
      
Total EPRA NAV movement in the year 85.8 47.1 50.2 97.3 183.1 
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 884.9 352.1 320.3 672.4 1,557.3 
Total EPRA NAV carried forward  970.7 399.2 370.5 769.7 1,740.4 

The £3.9 million charge that comprises the other balance within the unallocated segment includes a tax charge of £0.9 million, fair value 
of share options charge of £1.4 million, £0.7 million relating to the redemption of convertible bond, purchase of own shares £0.3m and 
£0.7million for the UNITE Foundation. 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.3 Net assets continued 
b) Movement in EPRA NAV during the year continued 

2016 

UNITE Share of joint ventures 

Group on  
EPRA 
 basis  

 
Total 

£m 
USAF 

£m 
LSAV 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Operations      
Operations segment result 31.9 17.3 12.1 29.4 61.3 
      
Property      
Rental growth 35.8 14.8 12.0 26.8 62.6 
Yield movement 4.9 7.2 7.5 14.7 19.6 
Disposals and acquisition gains 1.0 – – –  1.0 
Investment property gains 41.7 22.0 19.5 41.5 83.2 
Development property gains  36.5 0.4 14.5 14.9 51.4 
Pre-contract/other development costs (1.0) – – – (1.0) 
Total property 77.2 22.4 34.0 56.4 133.6 
      
Unallocated      
Shares issued 0.3 – – – 0.3 
Investment in joint ventures 3.5 7.1 (10.6) (3.5) – 
Convertible bond 2.3 – – – 2.3 
Dividends paid (34.2) – – – (34.2) 
USAF performance fee 6.5 – – – 6.5 
USAF property acquisition fee 0.4 – – – 0.4 
Swap cancellation costs (1.0) – – – (1.0) 
Other (6.3) – – – (6.3) 
Total unallocated (28.5) 7.1 (10.6) (3.5) (32.0) 
      
Total EPRA NAV movement in the year 80.6 46.8 35.5 82.3 162.9 
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 804.3 305.3 284.8 590.1 1,394.4 
Total EPRA NAV carried forward  884.9 352.1 320.3 672.4 1,557.3 

The £6.3 million charge that comprises the other balance within the unallocated segment includes a tax charge of £2.3 million, fair value 
of share options charge of £3.0 million and £1.0 million for the UNITE Foundation. 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.3 Net assets continued 
c) Reconciliation to IFRS 
To determine EPRA NAV net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the mark to market valuation of swaps, deferred tax 
liabilities and to recognise all properties at market value.  

The Group also manages NAV using EPRA NNNAV, which adjusts EPRA NAV to include the fair value of swaps and debt. Under EPRA best 
practice guidelines this is considered to give stakeholders the most relevant comparable information on the current fair value of all the 
assets and liabilities in the Group. 

The Net Assets reported under IFRS reconcile to EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV as follows: 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Net asset value reported under IFRS  1,729.0 1,451.6 
    
Mark to market interest rate swaps  2.1 14.9 
Deferred tax  9.3 5.4 
EPRA NAV (pre convertible) 2.3a 1,740.4 1,471.9 
Convertible bond   – 85.4 
EPRA NAV  1,740.4 1,557.3 
    
Mark to market of fixed rate debt  (55.1) (19.7) 
Mark to market interest rate swaps  (2.1) (14.9) 
Deferred tax  (9.3) (5.4) 
EPRA NNNAV  1,673.9 1,517.3 

d) NAV per share 
Basic NAV is based on the net assets attributable to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group plc and the number of shares in issue at the 
end of the year. The Board uses EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV to monitor the performance of the Property segment on a day to day basis. 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Net assets     
Basic  2.3c 1,729.0 1,451.6 
EPRA 2.3a 1,740.4 1,557.3 
EPRA diluted  1,743.0 1,559.9 
EPRA NNNAV (diluted)  1,676.5 1,520.0 
Number of shares (thousands)    
Basic  241,279 222,268 
Convertible bond shares   – 18,426 
Outstanding share options  919 762 
Diluted  242,198 241,456 
Net asset value per share (pence)    
Basic  717p 653p 
EPRA  721p 647p 
EPRA (fully diluted)  720p 646p 
EPRA NNNAV (fully diluted)  692p 630p 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.4. Revenue and costs 
The Group earns revenue from the following activities: 

  Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Rental income Operations segment 2.2a 99.7 97.1 
Management fees Operations segment  16.5 16.0 
Development fees Property segment   – 1.0 
USAF performance fee Unallocated  3.4 7.0 
   119.6 121.1 
Impact of minority interest on management fees  (0.3) (0.4) 
Total revenue    119.3 120.7 

The cost of sales included in the consolidated income statement includes property operating expenses of £28.5 million (2016: £30.3 million), 
operating lease rentals of £12.6 million (2016: £13.5 million) and costs associated with development fees of £nil million (2016: £1.1 million). 

  

Accounting policies 
Revenue is recognised on the following bases: 

Rental income 
Rental income from property leased out under operating leases (comprising direct lets to students and leases to Universities and 
commercial tenants) is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives are 
sometimes granted on commercial units; these are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income and spread over the 
term of the lease. 

Management and performance fees 
The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures and receives management fees in relation to these services. 
In addition, the Group is entitled to performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform certain benchmarks. 
The Group receives an enhanced equity interest in the JVs as consideration for the performance fee. 

Management and performance fees are recognised, in line with the management contracts, in the period to which they relate 
as services are provided.  
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.5 Tax 
As a REIT, rental profits and gains on disposal of investment properties are exempt from corporation tax. The Group pays UK corporation 
tax on the profits from its residual business, including profits arising on construction operations and management fees received from joint 
ventures, together with UK income tax on rental income that arises from investments held by offshore subsidiaries in which the Group holds 
a minority interest. 
 

a) Tax – income statement 
The total taxation charge/(credit) in the income statement is analysed as follows: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Corporation tax on residual business income arising in UK companies 1.7  – 
Income tax on UK rental income arising in non-UK companies  – 2.3 
Current tax charge 1.7 2.3 
   
Reversal of deferred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets  – (39.8) 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 4.5 13.7 
Effect of change in tax rate (0.6) (1.2) 
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 3.9 (27.3) 
   
Total tax charge/(credit) in income statement 5.6 (25.0) 

The Group elected to be taxed as a REIT with effect from 1 January 2017. As a result of this, the Group’s investment properties are exempt 
from tax and no deferred tax is required on the balance sheet in relation to these assets. Accordingly, the Group’s deferred tax now only 
relates to non-property investments (being primarily its interests in joint ventures) and historic tax losses. 

The movement in deferred tax provided is shown in more detail in note 2.5 d) below.  

Accounting policies 
The tax charge for the year is recognised in the income statement and the statement of comprehensive income, according to the 
accounting treatment of the related transaction. The tax charge comprises both current and deferred tax. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of previous years. The current tax charge is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the year end. 

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and those for taxation purposes. Temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are not 
provided for to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based 
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.  

As a REIT, rental profits and gains on disposal of investment properties are exempt from corporation tax. As a result, no deferred tax 
provision has been recognised at the balance sheet date in respect of property assets (revaluation and capital allowances). 

The Group’s investments in unit trusts are not exempt from tax as a REIT and, where they remain within the charge to tax, a deferred tax 
liability has been recognised as appropriate. The Group will be able to utilise its tax adjusted losses against gains arising on the disposal 
of its investments in unit trusts. As the deferred tax liability on non-property business investments exceeds the asset relating to the losses, 
the deferred tax asset in respect of the tax adjusted losses has been recognised in full. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

126

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017

Financial statements



 

  

Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.5 Tax continued 
a) Tax – income statement continued 
In the income statement, a tax charge of £5.6 million arises on a profit before tax of £229.4 million. The taxation charge that would arise 
at the standard rate of UK corporation tax is reconciled to the actual tax charge as follows: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Profit before tax 229.4 201.4 
   
Income tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19.25% (2016: 20%) 44.2 40.3 
Release of deferred tax balances due to REIT conversion  – (39.8) 
Property rental business profits exempt from tax in the REIT Group (11.2) – 
Property revaluations not subject to tax (25.0) (20.4) 
Effect of indexation on investments (1.1) (2.1) 
Effect of statutory tax reliefs (0.6) (1.5) 
Income due to Unite Foundation  – (1.0) 
Effect of tax deduction transferred to equity on share schemes  0.5 0.4 
Rate difference on deferred tax (0.5) (1.2) 
Prior years adjustments (0.7) 0.3 
Total tax charge/(credit) in income statement 5.6 (25.0) 

The main rate of corporation tax reduced from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. Accordingly, the reconciliation above has been 
calculated at a rate of 19.25% (2016: 20%). 

As a UK REIT, the Group is exempt from UK corporation tax on the profits from its property rental business. Accordingly, the element of the 
Group's profit before tax relating to its property rental business has been separately identified in the reconciliation above.  

Although the Group does not pay UK corporation tax on the profits from its property rental business, it is required to distribute 90% of the 
profits from its property rental business after accounting for tax adjustments as a Property Income Distribution ("PID"). PIDs are charged to 
tax in the same way as property income in the hands of the recipient. For the year ended 31 December 2017 the required PID is expected 
to be £40.7m of which £36.7m has been distributed at the year end, with the remainder to be distributed in May 2018. 

The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 19% to 17% with effect from 1 April 2020. This will reduce the Group’s future current tax  
charge accordingly. 

b) Tax – other comprehensive income 
Within other comprehensive income a tax charge totalling £nil (2016: £1.6 million credit) has been recognised representing deferred tax. 
An analysis of this is included in the deferred tax movement on page 128. 

c) Tax – statement of changes in equity 
Within the statement of changes in equity a tax credit totalling £0.7 million (2016: £0.1 million charge) has been recognised representing 
deferred tax. An analysis of this is included in the deferred tax movement on page 128. 
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Section 2: Results for the year continued 
2.5 Tax continued 
d) Tax – balance sheet 
The table below outlines the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) that are recognised in the balance sheet, together with their movements  
in the year:  

2017 

 

At 31 December  
2016 

£m 

Charged/(Credited) 
 in income 

£m 

(Credited)  
in equity 

£m 

At 31 December  
2017 

£m 

Investments 17.2 3.4  – 20.6 
Property, plant and machinery (0.1) (0.7)  – (0.8) 
Share schemes (0.9) 0.1 (0.1) (0.9) 
Tax value of carried forward losses recognised (11.8) 1.1  (0.6) (11.3) 
Net tax liabilities/(assets) 4.4 3.9* (0.7) 7.6 

* The £3.9 million balance (above) includes two tax movements (Property, plant and machinery and Share schemes) which are included in EPRA, which is why 
they are not included in the IFRS reconciliation in Note 2.2 b); removing them results in achieving the £4.5 million movement which is excluded per EPRA’s best 
practice recommendations. 

2016 

 

At 31 December  
2015 

£m 

(Credited) 
 in income 

£m 

Charged  
in equity 

£m 

At 31 December  
2016 

£m 

Investments 14.7 2.5 – 17.2 
Investment property (REIT property business assets) 41.1 (41.1) – – 
Property, plant and machinery (0.3) 0.2 – (0.1) 
Share schemes (1.6) 0.1 0.5 (0.9) 
Interest rate swaps (1.1)  – 1.1 – 
Interest rate swaps relating to joint ventures (0.5)  – 0.5 – 
Tax value of carried forward losses recognised (22.3) 11.0 (0.4) (11.8) 
Net tax liabilities/(assets) 30.0 (27.3)* 1.7 4.4 

* The £27.3 million balance (above) includes two tax movements (Property, plant and machinery and Share schemes) which are included in EPRA, which is 
why they are not included in the IFRS reconciliation in Note 2.2 b); removing them results in achieving the £27.6 million movement which is excluded per 
EPRA’s best practice recommendations. 

The deferred tax liability at 31 December 2017 has been calculated based on the rate at which it is expected to reverse. 

As a REIT, disposals of investment property are exempt from tax and as a result no deferred tax liability has been recognised in relation to 
these assets. The Group's investments in property unit trusts (being primarily its interests in joint ventures) are not exempt from tax as a REIT. 
Where they remain within the charge to tax, a deferred tax liability has been recognised on the excess of the market value of these assets 
over their historic tax base cost. At 31 December 2017 the deferred tax liability in relation to these investments was £20.6m.  

Company 
Deferred tax has not been recognised on temporary differences of £165.9 million (2016: £118.9 million) in respect of revaluation  
of subsidiaries and investment in joint ventures as it is considered unlikely that these investments will be divested. 

2.6 Audit fees 
Disclosures in respect of fees paid to the auditors can be found in the Audit Committee Report, page 68.  
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Section 3: Asset management 

3.1 Wholly owned property assets 
The Group’s wholly owned property portfolio is held in two groups on the balance sheet at the carrying values detailed below.  
In the Group’s EPRA NAV, all these groups are shown at market value.  

i) Investment property (fixed assets)  
These are assets that the Group intends to hold for a long period to earn rental income or capital appreciation. The assets are held at fair 
value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement. 

ii) Investment property under development (fixed assets) 
These are assets which are currently in the course of construction and which will be transferred to ‘Investment property’ on completion. 
The assets are held at fair value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the income statement. 

Valuation process 
The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of valuation reports prepared by external, independent valuers, 
having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The fair values are based on market values as defined in the RICS Appraisal 
and Valuation Manual, issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. CB Richard Ellis Ltd, Jones Lang LaSalle Ltd and Messrs Knight 
Frank, Chartered Surveyors were the valuers in the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. 

The valuations are based on both: 

- Information provided by the Group such as current rents, occupancy, operating costs, terms and conditions of 
leases and nomination agreements, capital expenditure, etc. This information is derived from the Group’s financial 
systems and is subject to the Group’s overall control environment. 

- Assumptions and valuation models used by the valuers – the assumptions are typically market related, such as 
yield and discount rates. These are based on their professional judgement and market observation. 

The information provided to the valuers – and the assumptions and the valuation models used by the valuers – are reviewed by the 
Management Board and the CFO. This includes a review of the fair value movements over the year. 

  

 

The Group holds its property portfolio directly and through its joint ventures. The performance of the property portfolio whether 
wholly owned or in joint ventures is the key factor that drives net asset value (NAV), one of the Group’s key performance 
indicators. The following pages provide disclosures about the Group’s investments in property assets and joint ventures and 
their performance over the year. 

Accounting policies 
Properties held under operating leases are not included in assets, but the future payments due in respect of these properties are 
disclosed in note 4.6a. 

Investment property and investment property under development are held at fair value. 

Inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. All costs directly associated with the purchase and 
construction of a property, and all subsequent qualifying expenditure is capitalised.  

The recognition of acquisitions and disposals of investment and other property occurs on unconditional exchange of contracts. 

Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of a property asset. Capitalisation 
of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are 
being incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs continues until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use but stops if 
development activities are suspended. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss 
is recognised. The capitalisation rate is arrived at by reference to the actual rate payable on borrowings for development purposes or, 
with regard to that part of the development cost financed out of general borrowings, to the average rate. During the year the average 
capitalisation rate used was 6.1% (2016: 6.4%). 

The external valuation of property assets involves significant judgement and changes to the core assumptions; market conditions, 
rental income, occupancy and property management costs, could have a significant impact on the carrying value of these assets. 
See below for more details of the valuation process. 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued 
The movements in the carrying value of the Group’s wholly owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2017 are shown 
in the table below. The fair value of the Group’s wholly owned properties at the year ended 31 December 2017 is also shown below. 

2017 

  
Investment property 

£m 

Investment property 
under development 

£m 
Total 

£m 

At 1 January 2017  1,061.6 184.6 1,246.2 
Cost capitalised  7.6 130.7 138.3 
Interest capitalised   – 7.4 7.4 
Transfer from investment property under development  156.3 (156.3)  – 
Transfer from work in progress   – 0.8 0.8 
Disposals  (28.7)  – (28.7) 
Valuation gains  78.6 43.6 122.2 
Valuation losses  (14.0) (5.1) (19.1) 
Net valuation gains  64.6 38.5 103.1 
Carrying and market value at 31 December 2017  1,261.4 205.7 1,467.1 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued 
The movements in the carrying value of the Group’s wholly owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2016 are shown in 
the table below. The fair value of the Group’s wholly owned property portfolio at the year ended 31 December 2016 is also shown below: 

2016 

  
Investment property 

£m 

Investment property 
under development 

£m 
Total 

£m 

At 1 January 2016  1,024.4 149.8 1,174.2 
Cost capitalised  7.6 101.7 109.3 
Interest capitalised  – 5.9 5.9 
Transfer from investment property under development  36.6 (36.6) – 
Transfer from work in progress  – 8.0 8.0 
Disposals  (44.0) (84.4) (128.4) 
Valuation gains  44.9 41.2 86.1 
Valuation losses  (7.9) (1.0) (8.9) 
Net valuation gains  37.0 40.2 77.2 
Carrying and market value at 31 December 2016  1,061.6 184.6 1,246.2 

Included within investment properties at 31 December 2017 are £30.5 million (2016: £31.5 million) of assets held under a long leasehold 
and £9.0 million (2016: £8.9 million) of assets held under short leasehold.  

Total interest capitalised in investment and development properties at 31 December 2017 was £41.5 million (2016: £34.9 million) on a 
cumulative basis. Total internal costs relating to construction and development costs of Group properties amount to £54.6 million at 
31 December 2017 (2016: £51.1 million) on a cumulative basis. 

Recurring fair value measurement 
All investment and development properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.  

Class of asset 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

London – Rental properties 465.9 424.9 
Major provincial – Rental properties 566.7 440.2 
Other provincial – Rental properties 228.8 196.5 
Major provincial – Development properties 178.7 158.4 
Other provincial – Development properties 27.0 26.2 
Market value 1,467.1 1,246.2 

The valuation technique for investment properties is a discounted cash flow using the following inputs: net rental income, estimated future 
costs, occupancy and property management costs. 

Where the asset is leased to a University, the valuations also reflect the length of the lease, the allocation of maintenance and insurance 
responsibilities between the Group and the lessee, and the market’s general perception of the lessee’s credit worthiness. 

The resulting valuations are cross-checked against the initial yields and the capital value per bed derived from actual market transactions. 

For development properties, the fair value is usually calculated by estimating the fair value of the completed property (using the 
discounted cash flow method) less estimated costs to completion. 

Fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Opening fair value 1,246.2 1,174.2 
Gains and losses recognised in income statement 103.1 77.2 
Capital expenditure 146.5 123.2 
Disposals (28.7) (128.4) 
Closing fair value 1,467.1 1,246.2 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued  
Quantitative information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Level 3) 
2017 

 
Fair value 

£m 
Valuation 

technique Unobservable inputs Range 
Weighted 
average 

London   Discounted  
cash flows 

Net rental income (£ per week) £183 – £345 £255 
– rental properties 465.9 Estimated future rent (%) 1% –6% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.2%–5.0% 4.5% 
Major provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Net rental income (£ per week) £100–£157 £134 

– rental properties 566.7 Estimated future rent (%) 1% – 6% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.5% –7.0% 5.5% 
Other provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Net rental income (£ per week) £94 – £164 £134 

– rental properties 228.8 Estimated future rent (%) 2% – 8% 4% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.2%–13.5%  6.0% 
Major provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Estimated cost to complete (£m) £8.1m–£81.9m £47m 

– development properties 178.7 Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.3% –6.0% 5.6% 
Other provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Estimated cost to complete (£m) £11.4m £11.4m 

– development properties 27.0 Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.7% 5.7% 
Fair value at 31 December 2017 1,467.1     
 
2016 

 
Fair value 

£m 
Valuation 

technique Unobservable inputs Range 
Weighted 
average 

London   Discounted  
cash flows 

Net rental income (£ per week) £179–£327 £249 
– rental properties 424.9 Estimated future rent (%) 1%–6% 4% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.5%–5.2% 4.7% 
Major provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Net rental income (£ per week) £105–£162 £129 

– rental properties 440.2 Estimated future rent (%) 1%–7% 4% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.2%–7.0% 5.7% 
Other provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Net rental income (£ per week) £95–£153 £126 

– rental properties 196.5 Estimated future rent (%) 2%–8% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.5%–12.0% 6.2% 
Major provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Estimated cost to complete (£m) £10.5m–£59.5m £36.1m 

– development properties 158.4 Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.8%–5.9% 5.6% 
Other provincial   Discounted  

cash flows 
Estimated cost to complete (£m) £12.3m–£26.5m £20.1m 

– development properties 26.2 Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3% 
   Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.7%–5.8% 5.7% 
Fair value at 31 December 2016 1,246.2     

A decrease in net rental income, estimated future rents or occupancy will result in a decrease in the fair value, whereas a decrease in the 
discount rate (yield) or the estimated costs to complete will result in an increase in fair value. There are inter-relationships between these 
rates as they are partially determined by market rate conditions. 

3.2 Inventories  
 

2017 
£m 

2016 
£m 

Interests in land 0.9 0.8 
Other stocks 3.6 2.1 
Inventories 4.5 2.9 

At 31 December 2017 the Group has interests in one piece of land (2016: one piece of land). 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.3 Other non-current assets 

The Group’s other non-current assets can be analysed as follows: 

 2017 2016 

 

Property, plant 
and equipment 

£m 

Intangible  
assets 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Property, plant 
and equipment 

£m 

Intangible  
assets 

£m 
Total 

£m 

Cost or valuation       
At 1 January  22.0 41.3 63.3 18.9 33.1 52.0 
Additions 4.4 5.7 10.1 3.1 8.2 11.3 
Disposals (6.3)  – (6.3)  –  –  – 
At 31 December  20.1 47.0 67.1 22.0 41.3 63.3 
       
Depreciation, amortisation and  
impairment losses       
At 1 January  12.6 20.9 33.5 9.4 18.1 27.5 
Depreciation/amortisation charge  
for the year 2.3 4.7 7.0 1.6 2.8 4.4 
Impairment* 0.5  – 0.5  1.6 –  1.6  
Disposals (6.3)  – (6.3)  –  –  – 
At 31 December  9.1 25.6 34.7 12.6 20.9 33.5 
       
Carrying value at 1 January 9.4 20.4 29.8 9.5 15.0 24.5 
Carrying amount at 31 December 11.0 21.4 32.4 9.4 20.4 29.8 

* Being write down of leasehold improvements on variation of lease. 

Intangible assets include £2.0 million (2016: £3.9 million) of assets not being amortised as they are not yet ready for use. Property, plant 
and equipment assets include £0.7m (2016: £1.1m) of assets not being depreciated as they are not ready for use. At 31 December 2017 
the Group had capital commitments amounting to £1.9 million relating to intangible assets and £nil million relating to Property, plant  
and equipment. 

  

Accounting policies 
Property, plant and equipment 
Other than land and buildings; property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment  
losses (see below). Land and buildings are stated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties. Property, plant and 
equipment mainly comprise leasehold improvements at the Group’s head office and London office as well as computer hardware  
and software at these sites. 

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and 
equipment. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

- Leasehold 
improvements 

- Other assets  

Shorter life of lease and economic life 
 
4–20 years 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets predominately comprise internally developed computer software which allows customers to book online  
and processes transactions within the sales cycle. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of overheads. Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense incurred, 
2017: £nil, (2016: £nil). The assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over 4 to 7 years being the estimated useful lives of the intangible 
assets, from the date they are available for use. Amortisation is charged to the income statement within operating expenses. 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) 

The Group has two joint ventures: 

Joint venture 

Group’s share  
of assets/results 2017 
(2016) Objective Partner 

Legal entity in which  
Group has interest 

The UNITE UK Student 
Accommodation Fund 
(USAF) 

26.2%* (24.6%) Invest and operate  
student accommodation 

throughout the UK 

Consortium of investors UNITE UK Student 
Accommodation Fund,  

a Jersey Unit Trust 
London Student 
Accommodation Venture 
(LSAV) 

50% (50%) Develop and operate 
student accommodation in 

London 

GIC Real Estate Pte, Ltd 
Real estate 

 investment vehicle  
of the Government  

of Singapore 

LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit 
Trust and LSAV (Holdings) Ltd, 

incorporated in Jersey 

*  Part of the Group’s interest is held through a subsidiary, USAF (Feeder) Guernsey Ltd, in which there is an external investor. A minority interest therefore 
occurs on consolidation of the Group’s results representing the external investor’s share of profits and assets relating to its investment in USAF. The ordinary 
shareholders of The Unite Group plc are beneficially interested in 24.6% (2016: 23.0%) of USAF. 

  

Accounting policies 
Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement. The consolidated 
financial statements include joint ventures initially at cost subsequently increased or decreased by the Group’s share of total gains and 
losses of joint ventures on an equity basis. Interest free joint venture investment loans are initially recorded at fair value – the difference 
between the nominal amount and fair value being treated as an investment in the joint venture. The implied discount is amortised over 
the contracted life of the investment loan. 

The Directors consider that the agreements integral to its joint ventures result in the Group having joint control; a significant degree of 
judgement is exercised in this assessment due to the complexity of the contractual arrangements.  

USAF and LSAV are jointly owned entities that are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to the complexity of the contractual 
arrangements and Unite’s role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the assessment of joint control following changes to 
accounting standards (IFRS10) involves judgements around a number of significant factors. These factors include how Unite as fund 
manager has the ability to direct relevant activities such as acquisitions, disposals, capital expenditure for refurbishments and funding 
whether through debt or equity. This assessment for USAF is complex because of the number of unitholders and how their rights are 
represented through an Advisory Committee. For some of the activities it is not clear who has definitive control of the activities: in some 
scenarios the Group can control, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the activities which are considered to have the 
greatest impact on the returns of USAF, acquisitions and equity financing, it has been determined that the Group and the Advisory 
Committee has joint power in directing these activities and that on balance, it is appropriate to account for USAF as a joint venture. 
The assessment for LSAV is more straightforward because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint venture and there is therefore 
much clearer evidence that control over the key activities is shared by the two parties. 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued 
a) Net assets and results of the joint ventures 
The summarised balance sheets and results for the year, and the Group’s share of these joint ventures are as follows:  

2017 

  
USAF  
£m 

LSAV  
£m 

Total  
£m 

 Gross MI Share Gross Share Gross Share 

Investment property 2,232.7 35.2 548.9 1,158.6 579.3 3,391.3 1,163.4 
Cash 101.5 1.6 25.0 31.1 15.6 132.6 42.2 
Debt (689.3) (10.9) (169.5) (424.6) (212.3) (1,113.9) (392.7) 
Swap liabilities 0.4  – 0.1 (2.8) (1.4) (2.4) (1.3) 
Other current assets 28.5 0.4 7.0 1.5 0.7 30.0 8.1 
Other current liabilities (61.6) (1.2) (12.2) (25.5) (12.8) (87.1) (26.2) 
Net assets 1,612.2 25.1 399.3 738.3 369.1 2,350.5 793.5 
        
Minority Interest  – (25.1)  –  –  –  – (25.1) 
Swap liabilities (0.4)  – (0.1) 2.8 1.4 2.4 1.3 
EPRA net assets  1,611.8  – 399.2 741.1 370.5 2,352.9 769.7 
        
Profit/(loss) for the year 163.7 2.5 42.1 117.1 58.5 280.8 103.1 
 
2016* 

  
USAF  
£m 

LSAV  
£m 

Total  
£m 

 Gross MI Share Gross Share Gross Share 

Investment property 2,287.9 36.3 525.9 1,009.0 504.5 3,296.9 1,066.7 
Cash 41.8 0.7 9.6 27.0 13.5 68.8 23.8 
Debt (755.5) (12.0) (173.6) (381.4) (190.7) (1,136.9) (376.3) 
Swap liabilities 0.7  – 0.2 (7.1) (3.5) (6.4) (3.3) 
Other current assets 3.5 0.1 0.7 0.8 0.4 4.3 1.2 
Other current liabilities (55.3) (1.2) (10.5) (14.8) (7.4) (70.1) (19.1) 
Net assets 1,523.1 23.9 352.3 633.5 316.8 2,156.6 693.0 
        
Minority Interest  – (23.9)  –  –  –  – (23.9) 
Swap liabilities (0.7)  – (0.2) 7.1 3.5 6.4 3.3 
EPRA net assets 1,522.4  – 352.1 640.6 320.3 2,163.0 672.4 
        
Profit/(loss) for the year 164.7 2.9 43.4 97.0 48.5 261.7 94.8 

*Table has been restated for comparative purposes. 

Net assets and profit for the year above include the minority interest, whereas EPRA net assets exclude the minority interest. 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued 
b) Movement in carrying value of the Group’s investments in joint ventures 
The carrying value of the Group’s investment in joint ventures has increased by £100.6 million during the year ended 31 December 2017 
(2016: £82.3 million), resulting in an overall carrying value of £793.5 million (2016: £692.9 million). The following table shows how the increase 
has been achieved.  

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Recognised in the income statement:   
Operations segment result 32.2 29.4 
Minority interest share of Operations segment result 1.1 1.2 
Management fee adjustment related to trading with joint venture 5.7 5.4 
Net revaluation gains 65.0 58.8 
Loss on cancellation of interest rate swaps (0.8) – 
Profit on disposal of properties 0.5 – 
Other (0.6) – 
 103.1 94.8 
Recognised in equity:   
Movement in effective hedges 2.1 (1.4) 
   
Other adjustments to the carrying value:   
Profit adjustment related to trading with joint venture (7.4) (6.3) 
Additional capital invested in USAF 18.5 – 
Performance fee units issued in USAF 8.1 25.6 
Additional capital invested in LSAV 8.5 – 
USAF performance fee  (0.7) (1.2) 
Distributions received (31.6) (29.2) 
Increase in carrying value 100.6 82.3 
   
Carrying value at 1 January  692.9 610.6 
Carrying value at 31 December  793.5 692.9 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued 
b) Movement in carrying value of the Group’s investments in joint ventures continued 
In addition to its equity shares, the Group has also provided interest free investment loans to some of the joint ventures. These were primarily 
provided on the setting up of the joint venture to provide capital to acquire investment properties. As a result of being provided interest 
free, the loans were discounted on recognition to reflect the fair value, the unwinding of the discount is reflected in the Group’s finance 
income. 

c) Transactions with joint ventures 
The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures and receives management fees in relation to these services.  
In addition, the Group is entitled to performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform certain benchmarks. The Group 
receives an enhanced equity interest in the joint ventures as consideration for the performance fee. The Group has recognised the 
following fees in its results for the year. 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

USAF 13.1 12.8 
LSAV 7.9 8.0 
Asset and property management fees 21.0 20.8 
   
LSAV  – 1.0 
Development management fees  – 1.0 
   
USAF performance fee 4.0 8.1 
USAF acquisition fee 0.7 0.5 
LSAV acquisition fee 1.0  – 
Investment management fees* 5.7 8.6 
   
Total fees 26.7 30.4 

*  Included in the movement in EPRA NAV is a USAF performance fee of £3.4million (2016: £6.5 million). This is the gross fee of £4.0 million (2016: £8.1 million) paid 
by USAF net of advisory fee costs of £nil million (2016: £0.5 million) and a £0.6 million (2016: £1.1 million) adjustment related to trading with joint ventures. The 
USAF performance fee will be settled in units in The UNITE UK Student Accommodation Fund rather than cash. Full details of the USAF performance fees are 
set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 51. 

Included in share of joint venture profit in the income statement is a share of joint venture property management fee costs of £1.2 million 
(2016: £1.6 million). On an EPRA basis these costs are deducted from the property management fees shown above, plus an adjustment 
for the minority interest of £0.2 million (2016: £0.4 million). This results in the net fees included in the Operating Segment result (note 2.2a) 
of £14.1 million (2016: £14.0 million). Development management fees are included in the Property Segment result (note 2.2a). Investment 
management fees are included within the unallocated to segments (note 2.2a). 

Included in the movement in EPRA NAV is a USAF property acquisition fee of £0.4 million (2016: £0.4 million). This is the gross fee of £1.0 million 
(2016: £0.5 million) paid by USAF net of a £0.3 million (2016: £0.1 million) adjustment related to trading with joint ventures and a £0.3 million 
(2016: £nil) adjustment relating to other acquisition costs paid to a third party. 

Included in the movement in EPRA NAV is an LSAV property acquisition fee of £0.5 million (2016: £nil). This is the gross fee of £1.0 million 
(2016: £nil) paid by LSAV net of a £0.5 million (2016: £nil) adjustment related to trading with joint ventures. 

During the year the Group has paid operating lease rentals to USAF relating to one property under a sale and leaseback agreement 
amounting to £0.7 million (2016: £2.2 million). 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued 
c) Transactions with joint ventures continued 
During the year the Group recognised additional proceeds of £2 million in relation to the sale of a property to LSAV in 2015 under the  
terms of the original sale agreement. At the balance sheet date the proceeds had not been settled and therefore no cash flows have 
been disclosed. In 2016 the Group sold two properties to USAF for £88.4 million. Both properties had been held on the balance sheet  
as investment property under development within non-current assets, the proceeds and carrying value of the property are therefore 
recognised in profit on disposal of property and the cash flows in investing activities. The profits relating to sales and associated disposal 
costs and related cash flows are set out below:  

  
Profit and loss  

2017 
Profit and loss 

2016 

 
LSAV 

£m 
USAF 

£m 

Included in profit on disposal of property (net of joint venture trading adjustment) 1.0 3.2 
Profit on disposal of property 1.0 3.2 
 

 
Cash flow  

2017 
Cash flow  

2016 

 
LSAV 

£m 
USAF 

£m 

Gross proceeds – 88.4 
Net cash flows included in cash flows from investing activities – 88.4 
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Section 3: Asset management continued 
3.5 Investments in subsidiaries (Company) 

Carrying value of investment in subsidiaries 
The movements in the Company’s interest in unlisted subsidiaries and joint ventures during the year are as follows: 

 Investment in subsidiaries 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

At 1 January  725.4 648.3 
Revaluation 201.2 77.1 
At 31 December 926.6 725.4 

The carrying value of investment in subsidiaries has been calculated using the equity attributable to the owners of the parent company 
from the consolidated balance sheet adjusted for the fair value of fixed rate loans. This includes investment property, investment property 
under development and swaps at a fair value calculated by a third party expert. All investment properties and investment properties 
under development are classified as Level 3 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and have been discussed on page 132. The fixed rate loans 
range between Level 1 and Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and have been discussed further on page 140. 

In addition to the equity investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, the Company has provided a loan with interest chargeable at 6.125% 
to LDC (Holdings) plc. The carrying value of the loan to LDC (Holdings) plc was £90.0 million (2016: £90.0 million). A further loan of £89.9 
million (2016: £89.9 million) was provided to LDC (Holdings) plc with interest chargeable at 5.0%; this loan was fully repaid during the year. 

A full list of the Company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures can be found in note 7.  

  

Accounting policies 
In the financial statements of the Company, investments in subsidiaries are held at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised 
in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity. 
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Section 4: Funding 

4.1 Borrowings 

The table below analyses the Group’s borrowings which comprise bank and other loans by when they fall due for payment: 

 Group Company 
 2017 2016 2017 2016 

 
Carrying value 

£m 
Carrying value 

£m 
Carrying value 

£m 
Carrying value 

£m 

Current      
In one year or less, or on demand 1.3 1.3  2.9 0.1 
     
Non-current     
In more than one year but not more than two years 1.4 108.1 – 85.3 
In more than two years but not more than five years 379.4 126.3 267.6 90.0 
In more than five years 130.7 239.1  – – 
 511.5 473.5 267.6 175.3 
Total borrowings 512.8 474.8 270.5 175.4 

In addition to the borrowings currently drawn as shown above, the Group has available undrawn facilities of £327.0 million (2016: £245.0 
million). A further overdraft facility of £10.0 million (2016: £10.0 million) is also available.  

Properties with a carrying value of £609.1 million (2016: £998.0 million) have been pledged as security against the Group’s drawn down borrowings. 

The carrying value of borrowings is considered to be approximate to fair value, except for the Group’s fixed rate loans as analysed below: 

 2017 2016 

 
Carrying value 

£m 
Fair value 

£m 
Carrying value 

£m 
Fair value 

£m 

     
Level 1 IFRS fair value hierarchy 90.0 96.1 176.2 212.5 
Level 2 IFRS fair value hierarchy 239.1 263.8 240.3 215.0 
Other loans 183.7 183.7 58.3 54.7 
     
Total borrowings 512.8 543.6 474.8 482.2 

 

The Group finances its development and investment activities through a mixture of retained earnings, borrowings and equity. 
The Group continuously monitors its financing arrangements to manage its gearing.  

Interest rate swaps are used to manage the Group’s risk to fluctuations in interest rate movements. 

The following pages provide disclosures about the Group’s funding position, including borrowings, gearing  
and hedging instruments; its exposure to market risks; and its capital management policies. 
 
The Merger reserve arose on the acquisition of the Unilodge portfolio in June 2001. 

Accounting policies 
Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
interest bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised 
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 

On 10 October 2013 the Group issued a convertible bond. The unsecured instrument paid a coupon of 2.5%. In accordance with IFRS, 
the equity and debt components of the bond were accounted for separately. As a result, £80.3 million was recognised as a liability in 
the balance sheet on issue and the remainder of the proceeds, £9.6 million, which represents the equity component, was credited to 
reserves. The difference between the fair value of the liability and the principal value was amortised through the income statement 
from the date of issue. Issue costs of £2.0m were allocated between equity and debt and the element relating to the debt component 
was amortised over the life of the bond. The issue costs apportioned to equity of £0.2 million were not amortised. 

The full principal value of the Group’s convertible bond (£89.9 million) converted into equity in June with the issue of 18,593,589 ordinary 
shares in Unite Group plc. 
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Section 4: Funding continued 
4.1 Borrowings continued 

The fair value of loans classified as Level 1 in the IFRS fair value hierarchy is determined using quoted prices in active markets for  
identical liabilities. 

The fair value of loans classified as Level 2 in the IFRS fair value hierarchy has been calculated by a third party expert discounting estimated 
future cash flows on the basis of market expectation of future interest rates. 

4.2 Interest rate swaps 
The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage the Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations. In accordance with the Group’s treasury 
policy, the Group does not hold or issue interest rate swaps for trading purposes and only holds swaps which are considered to be 
commercially effective.  

The following table shows the fair value of interest rate swaps: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Current  – – 
Non-current 0.8 11.6 
Fair value of interest rate swaps 0.8 11.6 

The fair values of interest rate swaps have been calculated by a third party expert, discounting estimated future cash flows on the basis 
of market expectations of future interest rates, representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.  

4.3 Net financing costs 

  

Accounting policies 
Interest rate swaps are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value, with mark to market movements recognised in the income 
statement unless cash flow hedge accounting is applied.  

Hedge accounting, as defined in IFRS, is when the interest rate swap is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the 
variability in cash flows attributable to the interest risk of borrowings. The effective portion of changes in fair value of the interest rate 
swap is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the interest rate swap is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group only applies hedge accounting when the 
hedge is expected to be highly effective. 

When a hedging instrument or hedge relationship is terminated but the hedged transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative 
gain or loss at that point remains in equity with any subsequent movements in fair value taken to the income statement. If the hedged 
transaction is no longer probable, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement 
immediately. 

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance 
sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current credit-worthiness of the swap counterparties. 

Accounting policies 
Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings less interest receivable on funds invested (both calculated using the 
effective interest rate method) and gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the income statement. 
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Section 4: Funding continued 
4.3 Net financing costs continued 

Recognised in the income statement: 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Finance income   
– Interest income on deposit (0.1) (0.1) 
Finance income (0.1) (0.1) 
   
Gross interest expense on loans 24.7 26.8 
Interest capitalised (7.4) (5.9) 
Loan interest and similar charges 17.3 20.9 
   
Swap cancellation and loan break costs 11.5 1.0 
Finance costs 28.8 21.9 
Net financing costs 28.7 21.8 

The average cost of the Group’s wholly owned investment debt at 31 December 2017 is 4.3% (2016: 4.4%). The overall average cost 
of investment debt on an EPRA basis is 4.1% (2016: 4.2%). 

4.4 Gearing 
The Group’s adjusted gearing ratio is a key indicator that the Group uses to manage its indebtedness. EPRA net asset value (NAV) 
and adjusted net debt are used to calculate adjusted gearing. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of interest rate swaps as 
shown below. 

The Group’s gearing ratios are calculated as follows: 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 51.2 42.7 
Current borrowings 4.1 (1.3) (1.3) 
Non-current borrowings 4.1 (511.5) (473.5) 
Interest rate swaps liabilities 4.2 (0.8) (11.6) 
Net debt per balance sheet  (462.4) (443.7) 
    
Mark to market of interest rate swaps  0.8 11.6 
    
Adjusted net debt  (461.6) (432.1) 
Reported net asset value (attributable to owners of the parent company) 2.3c 1,729.0 1,451.6 
EPRA net asset value  2.3c 1,740.4 1,557.3 
    
Gearing    
Basic (Net debt/Reported net asset value)  27% 31% 
Adjusted gearing (Adjusted net debt/EPRA net asset value)  27% 28% 
Gearing (EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value) 2.3a 46% 50% 
Loan to value (EPRA net debt/Total property portfolio) 2.3a 31% 34% 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

142

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017

Financial statements



 

  

Section 4: Funding continued 
4.5 Financial risk factors 
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks – primarily interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s 
treasury policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial 
performance. Details on credit risk can be found in note 5.3. 

a) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group is impacted by significant changes in interest rates. Borrowings issued at or swapped to floating 
rates expose the Group to interest rate risk. The Group’s policy is separated into two main areas: 

i) Development and refinancing 
The Group had no specific development borrowings as at 31 December 2017 (2016: £nil). 

The Group’s principal exposure to interest rate fluctuations during development relates to movements in longer term interest rates which 
affect the amount of debt the property income is capable of servicing at completion. Significant adverse movements undermine the 
Group’s ability to release equity from its developments. 

The Group will continue to review the level of its hedging in the light of the current low interest rate environment. The Group’s policy allows 
this exposure to be managed through the use of forward starting swaps. 

ii) Medium and long-term finance 
The Group holds its medium and long-term bank finance under both floating and fixed rate arrangements. The majority of this floating 
debt is hedged through the use of interest rate swap agreements, although not all these arrangements qualify for hedge accounting 
under IAS 39. The Group’s policy guideline has been to hedge 75% and 95% of the Group’s exposure for terms of approximately 2–10 years. 

At 31 December 2017, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 64% (2016: 100%) of the Group’s medium and long-term investment 
borrowing was held at fixed rates; however further contracted hedging with a forward start state and planned fixed rate funding will 
increase the hedge ratio to above 90% over the next 18 months. Excluding the £4.7 million (2016: £92.9 million) of swaps the fixed 
investment borrowing is at an average rate of 5.2% (2016: 4.6%) for an average period of 4.5 years (2016: 5 years), including all debt  
with current or forward starting swaps the average rate is 4.0% (2016: 4.4%).  

The Group holds interest rate swaps at 31 December 2017 against £4.7 million (2016: £92.9 million) of the Group’s borrowings.  
The maturity of these swaps and the applicable interest rates are as follows: 

 

2017 
Nominal  

amount hedged 
£m 

2017 
Applicable  

interest rates 
% 

2016 
Nominal  

amount hedged 
£m 

2016 
Applicable 

 interest rates 
% 

Within one year  –  – – – 
Between one and two years  –  – – – 
Between two and five years 4.7 2.1 47.6 1.8 
More than five years  –  – 45.3 2.2 

During the year, if interest rates had increased/decreased by 1%, pre-tax profit for the year would have been £0.8 million (2016: £0.6 million) 
lower/higher.  

b) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. For development activities, the Group 
has a policy to inject substantially the full amount of equity required for each development before drawing debt against the specific 
facility for the development. The funding requirements of each scheme are therefore substantially ‘ring-fenced’ and secured at the outset 
of works. 

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and interest rate swaps into relevant maturity groupings based on the period 
remaining until the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including 
interest), so will not always reconcile with the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet. 
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Section 4: Funding continued 
4.5 Financial risk factors continued 
b) Liquidity risk continued 
2017 

 

Total contractual 
cash flows 

£m 

Less than  
1 year 

£m 

Between  
1 and 2 years 

£m 

Between  
2 and 5 years 

£m 

Over  
5 years 

£m 

Bank and other loans* 600.5 21.7 21.8 420.1 136.9 
Trade and other payables 152.1 152.1 – – – 
      
Interest rate swaps – effective** 3.8 0.1 0.3 3.4 – 
 756.4 173.9 22.1 423.5 136.9 

2016 

 

Total contractual 
cash flows 

£m 

Less than  
1 year 

£m 

Between  
1 and 2 years 

£m 

Between  
2 and 5 years 

£m 

Over  
5 years 

£m 

Bank and other loans* 490.2 19.7 40.9 172.8 256.8 
Convertible bonds 93.8 2.2 91.6 – – 
Trade and other payables 123.7 123.7 – – – 
      
Interest rate swaps – effective 15.7 0.8 2.7 8.2 4.0 
 723.4 146.4 135.2 181.0 260.8 

* The contractual undiscounted cash flows include £293.9m (2016: £108.8m) in relation to the Company. 
** The contractual undiscounted cash flows in relation to interest rate swaps include £3.5m (2016: £nil) in relation to the Company. 

The full principal value of the Group’s convertible bond (£89.9 million) fully converted into equity in June 2017 with the issue of 18,593,589 
ordinary shares in Unite Group plc. 

c) Covenant compliance 
Many of the Group’s funding facilities carry covenants. The Group monitors its covenant position and the headroom available on an 
ongoing basis. At 31 December 2017, the Group was in full compliance with all of its borrowing covenants. The Group is able to use 
available cash to reduce debt to increase headroom on its loan to value (LTV) covenants. The covenant headroom position is outlined 
below and assumes that the Group is able to use available cash within net debt. 

 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 

 
Weighted 
covenant 

Weighted  
actual 

Weighted 
covenant 

Weighted  
actual 

Loan to value 65% 36% 74% 15%* 
Interest cover  1.9 4.2  1.5 4.04 

* Calculated on the basis that available cash is used to reduce debt and available property can be used as additional security. 
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Section 4: Funding continued 
4.6 Operating leases 
a) Payable 

The total future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases fall due for repayment as follows: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Less than one year 13.1 13.8 
Between one and five years 52.7 56.2 
More than five years 152.0 171.0 
Total 217.8 241.0 

These leases primarily relate to properties which the Group has sold and leased back and on which rental income is earned. The leases are 
generally for periods between 12 and 17 years and subject to annual RPI-based rent review. The total operating lease expenditure 
incurred during the year was £14.5 million (2016: £15.3 million). 

b) Receivable 
The Group accounts for its tenancy contracts offered to commercial and individual tenants as operating leases. The future minimum lease 
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Less than one year  131.0 77.1 
Between one and five years 177.5 140.4 
More than five years 262.3 267.2 
Total 570.8 484.7 

4.7 Capital management 
The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders’ equity and adjusted net debt, including cash held on deposit. The Group’s 
equity is analysed into its various components in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The components and calculation of adjusted net 
debt is set out in note 4.4. Capital is managed so as to continue as a going concern and to promote the long-term success of the business 
and to maintain sustainable returns for shareholders and joint venture partners.  

The Group uses a number of key metrics to manage its capital structure: 

- adjusted net debt (4.4) 
- adjusted gearing (4.4) 
- LTV (2.3a) 
- weighted average cost of investment debt (4.5aii) 

In order to manage levels of adjusted gearing over the medium term, the Group seeks to deliver NAV growth and to recycle capital 
invested in lower performing assets into new assets and property developments. £29.6 million of property assets were sold in 2017 and 
we plan to sell an average of £75 – £125 million of property each year. The Group targets a yield on cost of approximately 8%. The Group 
does not commit to developing new sites until sufficient equity and funding to fulfil the full cost of the development is secure. 

The Board monitors the ability of the Group to pay dividends out of available cash and distributable profits. The Operations Segment 
generated cash of £63.2 million (2016: £61.3 million) during the year, thereby covering the combined paid interim dividend and proposed 
final dividend of £54.8 million, 1.2 times (2016: £40.0 million, 1.5 times). 

  

Accounting policies 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight- line basis over the term of the lease. 
Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense. Where the property 
interest under an operating lease is classified as an investment property, the property interest is accounted for as if it were a finance 
lease and the fair value model is used for the asset recognised. 

The Group has a number of sale and leaseback properties which are accounted for as operating leases. 
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Section 4: Funding continued 
4.8 Equity 

The Company’s issued share capital has increased during the year as follows: 

 2017 2016 

Called up, allotted and fully paid ordinary shares  
of £0.25p each No. of shares 

Ordinary 
shares 

£m 

Share 
Premium 

£m No. of shares 

Ordinary 
shares 

£m 

Share 
Premium 

£m 

At start of year  222,047,816 55.5 493.6 221,930,911 55.5 493.3 
Share placing – – – – – – 
Shares issued from Convertible Bond  18,593,589 4.7 85.3 – – – 
Share options exercised 188,876 0.0 0.6 116,905 – 0.3 
At end of year  240,830,281 60.2 579.5 222,047,816 55.5 493.6 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at 
meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. 

4.9 Dividends 

During the year, the Company declared and paid an interim dividend of £17.7 million – 7.3p per share (2016: £13.2 million – 6.0p per share) 
and paid a £26.7 million final dividend – 12.0p per share relating to the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: £21.0 million – 9.5p per share).  

After the year end, the Directors proposed a final dividend per share of 15.4p (2016: 12.0p), bringing the total dividend per share for the 
year to 22.7p (2016: 18.0p). No provision has been made in relation to this dividend. 

The Group has modelled tax adjusted property business profits for five years and declared PIDs in respect of the May 2017 and  
November 2017 distributions to ensure that the PID requirement will be satisfied. The combined PID from the distributions made during  
2017 comprise 78% of the Group’s forecast tax exempt property rental business profit, leaving a small amount that can be paid as part  
of the May 2018 distribution. 

  

Accounting policies 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business 
combination, are shown as a deduction, net of tax, in equity from the proceeds. Share issue costs incurred directly in connection with 
a business combination are deducted from the proceeds of the issue. 

Accounting policies 
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment. 
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Section 5: Working capital 

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

The Group’s cash position at 31 December 2017 was £51.2 million (2016: £42.7 million).  

At 31 December 2017 the Company had an overdraft of £2.9 million (2016: overdraft £0.1 million). 

The Group’s cash balances include £3.1 million (2016: £13.4 million) whose use at the balance sheet date is restricted by funding 
agreements to pay operating costs and loan interest relating to specific properties. 

The Group generates cash from its operating activities as follows: 

  Group Company 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Profit/(loss) for the year  223.8 226.4 197.9 213.8 
      
Adjustments for:      
 Depreciation and amortisation 3.3 7.0 4.4 – – 
 Fair value of share based payments 6.1 1.5 1.2 – – 
 Dividends received   – – – (139.3) 
 Change in value of investment property 3.1 (103.1) (77.2) – – 
 Change in value of investments 3.5  – – (201.2) (77.1) 
 Net finance costs 4.3 28.7 21.8 0.5 (0.3) 
 (Profit) on disposal of investment property  (0.6) (0.4) – – 
 Share of joint venture profit 3.4b (103.1) (94.8) – – 
 Trading with joint venture adjustment  7.2 7.5 – – 
 Tax charge/(credit) 2.5a 5.6 (25.0) – – 
Cash flows from operating activities before  
changes in working capital  67.0 63.9 (2.8) (2.9) 
Decrease in trade and other receivables  (13.2) (20.4) – – 
Decrease/(increase) in inventories  (2.3) 0.7 – – 
Increase in trade and other payables  6.9 26.1 2.5 0.3 
Cash flows from operating activities  58.4 70.3 (0.3) (2.6) 

£8.1 million of the brought forward trade and other receivables was settled in units in USAF rather than cash. 

Cash flows consist of the following segmental cash inflows/(outflows): Operations £63.2 million (2016: £61.3 million), property £27.7million 
(2016: (£6.0 million)) and unallocated (£82.4million) (2016: £39.6 million). The unallocated amount includes Group dividends (£42.3 million) 
(2016: (£34.2 million)), tax payable (£2.1 million) (2016: (£2.2 million)), investment in joint ventures (£27.0 million) (2016: (£nil)), contributions to 
UNITE Foundation (£0.1 million) (2016: (£1.0 million)), purchase of own shares (£1.9 million) (2016: (£2.5 million)) and amounts received from 
shares issued £0.6 million (2016: £0.3 million). 

  

 

This section focuses on how the Group generates its operating cash flows. Careful management of working capital is vital  
to ensure that the Group can meet its trading and financing obligations within its ordinary operating cycle.  

On the following pages you will find disclosures around the Group’s cash position and how cash is generated from the Group’s 
trading activities, and disclosures around trade receivables and payables. 

Accounting policies 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 
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Section 5: Working capital continued 
5.2 Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables can be analysed as follows; all trade and other receivables are current. 

 Group Company 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Trade receivables 19.4 17.8  – – 
Amounts due from group undertakings  – – 912.1 686.4 
Amounts owed by joint ventures 41.8 36.3  – – 
Prepayments and accrued income 11.0 8.4  – – 
USAF performance fee 4.0 8.1  – – 
Other receivables 6.7 7.3  – – 
Trade and other receivables 82.9 77.9 912.1 686.4 

The USAF performance fee will be settled in units in USAF. 

The Group offers tenancy contracts to commercial (Universities and retail unit tenants) and individual tenants based on the academic 
year. The Group monitors and manages the recoverability of its receivables based on the academic year to which the amounts relate. 
Rental income is payable immediately, therefore all receivables relating to tenants are past the payment due date. 

2017 
 Ageing by academic year  

 
Total 

£m 
2017/18 

£m 
2016/17 

£m 
Prior years 

£m 

Rental debtors     
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) 0.3 0.3  –   – 
Individual tenants (past due and impaired) 20.6 19.3 0.5 0.8 
Provisions carried (1.5) (0.2) (0.5) (0.8) 
Trade receivables 19.4 19.4  –  – 
 
2016 

 Ageing by academic year  

 
Total 

£m 
2016/17 

£m 
2015/16 

£m 
Prior years 

£m 

Rental debtors     
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) 0.4 0.3 0.1 – 
Individual tenants (past due and impaired) 18.8 17.4 0.9 0.5 
Provisions carried (1.4) (0.1) (0.8) (0.5) 
Trade receivables 17.8 17.6 0.2 – 

Amounts receivable from joint ventures are not past due or impaired. 

  

Accounting policies 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at the amount invoiced to the customer (fair value) and subsequently at the amounts 
considered recoverable (amortised cost). Estimates are used in determining the level of receivables that will not, in the opinion of 
the Board, be collected. These estimates include such factors as historical experience and industry specific factors. A provision for 
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is sufficient evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts 
due. The carrying value of trade receivables is considered to approximate fair value. 
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Section 5: Working capital continued 
5.2 Trade and other receivables continued 
Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables can be shown as follows: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

At 1 January  1.4 2.1 
Impairment charged to income statement in year 0.5 0.7 
Receivables written off during the year (utilisation of provision) (0.1) (1.4) 
At 31 December 1.8 1.4 

5.3 Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations. It arises principally from the Group’s cash balances, the Group’s receivables from customers and joint ventures and loans 
provided to the Group’s joint ventures.  

At the year end, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk was as follows: 

 Note 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Cash 5.1 51.2 42.7 
Trade receivables  5.2 19.4 17.8 
Amounts due from joint ventures (excluding loans that are capital in nature) 5.2 41.8 36.3 
  112.4 96.8 

a) Cash 
The Group operates investment guidelines with respect to surplus cash. Counterparty limits for cash deposits are largely based upon  
long-term ratings published by credit rating agencies and credit default swap rates. 

b) Trade receivables 
The Group’s customers can be split into two groups – (i) students (individuals) and (ii) commercial organisations including Universities. 
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced by the characteristics of each customer. The Group holds tenant deposits of £9.0 million 
(2016: £8.5 million) as collateral against individual customers. Based on the Group’s experience and historical low level of bad debt the 
Group views these receivables as recoverable balances with a low risk of default. 

c) Joint ventures 
Amounts receivable from joint ventures fall into two categories – working capital balances and investment loans. The Group has strong 
working relationships with its joint venture partners and therefore views this as a low credit risk balance. 

5.4 Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables due within one year can be analysed as follows: 

 Group Company 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Trade payables 19.7 16.8  – – 
Retentions on construction contracts for properties 7.8 5.8  – – 
Amounts due to group undertakings  – –  2.5 1.3 
Other payables and accrued expenses 67.1 45.8 3.2 3.0 
Deferred income 57.5 55.3  – – 
Trade and other payables 152.1 123.7 5.7 4.3 

Other payable and accrued expenses include £9.0million (2016: £8.5 million) in relation to customer deposits. These will be returned at the 
end of the tenancy subject to the condition of the accommodation and payment of any outstanding amounts. Deferred income relates 
to rental income that has been collected in advance of it being recognised as revenue.  

Accounting policies 
Trade payables are initially recognised at the value of the invoice received from a supplier (fair value) and subsequently at amortised 
cost. The carrying value of trade payables is considered approximate to fair value. 
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Section 5: Working capital continued 
5.5 Transactions with other group companies 
During the year, the Company entered into various interest free loans with its subsidiaries, the aggregate of which are disclosed in 
the cash flow statement. In addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated Solutions plc for corporate costs of £2.4 million 
(2016: £2.5 million).  

As a result of these intercompany transactions, the following amounts were due (to)/from the Company’s subsidiaries at the year end. 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Unite Holdings plc 77.1 70.7 
LDC (Holdings) plc 835.0 615.7 
UNITE Jersey Issuer Ltd  – – 
Amounts due from Group undertakings 912.1 686.4 
   
Unilodge Holding Ltd  – – 
Unilodge Holdings (UK) Ltd  – – 
UNITE Jersey Issuer Ltd  – (1.3) 
Amounts due to Group undertakings  – (1.3) 

The Company has had a number of transactions with its joint ventures, which are disclosed in note 3.4c. 

The Company has guaranteed £nil million of its subsidiary companies’ borrowings (2016: £121 million). The guarantees have been entered 
into in the normal course of business. A liability would only arise in the event of the subsidiary failing to fulfil its contractual obligations. These 
guarantees are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 4. 
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Section 6: Key management and employee benefits 

6.1 Staff numbers and costs 
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows: 

 Number of employees 
 2017 2016 

Managerial and administrative 328 325 
Site operatives 934 881 
 1,262 1,206 

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: 

 
2017 

£m 
2016 

£m 

Wages and salaries 39.6 38.0 
Social security costs 3.8 3.6 
Pension costs 1.2 1.2 
Fair value of share based payments 1.5 1.2 
 46.1 44.0 

The wages and salaries costs include redundancy costs of £1.2 million (2016: £1.0 million). 

Full details of the USAF performance fees are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 51. 

There are no employees employed directly by the Company. 

6.2 Key management personnel 
The Board considers that the key management personnel within the Group are those appointed to the Board. As such, the remuneration 
of key management personnel is contained within the Remuneration Report on pages 86 to 95, which covers the requirements of 
schedule 5 of the relevant legislation. 

  

 

The Group’s greatest resource is its staff and it works hard to develop and retain its people. The remuneration policies 
in place are aimed to help recognise the contribution that Unite’s people make to the performance of the Group.  

Over the next couple of pages, you will find disclosures on wages and salaries and share option schemes which allow 
employees of the Group to take an equity interest in the Group. 

Accounting policies 
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are 
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred. 

Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements Other information 151

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017



 

 

Section 6: Key management and employee benefits continued 
6.3 Share based compensation 
A transaction is classified as a share based transaction where the Group receives services from employees and pays for these in shares 
or similar equity instruments. The Group operates a number of share based compensation schemes allowing employees to acquire shares 
in the Company.  

a) Share schemes 
The Group operates the following schemes: 

b) Outstanding share options 
The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and their average exercise price: 

 

Weighted average  
exercise price 

2017 

Number of 
 options 

 (thousands) 
2017 

Weighted average  
exercise price 

2016 

Number of 
 options  

(thousands) 
2016 

Outstanding at 1 January  £1.32 2,113 £0.91 2,774 
Forfeited during the year £4.04 (130) £0.80 (495) 
Exercised during the year £0.86 (779) £0.40 (845) 
Granted during the year £1.52 749 £1.47 679 
Outstanding at 31 December £1.40 1,953 £1.32 2,113 
     
Exercisable at 31 December £2.15 87 £1.67 70 

For those options exercised in the year, the average share price during 2017 was £6.64 (2016: £6.24). 

For those options still outstanding, the range of exercise prices at the year end was 0p to 642p (2016: 0p to 642p) and the weighted 
average remaining contractual life of these options was 2.1 years (2016: 1.6 years). 

The Group funds the purchase of its own shares by the ‘Employee Share Ownership Trust’ to meet the obligations of the LTIP and executive 
bonus scheme. The purchases are shown as ‘Own shares acquired’ in retained earnings. As at 31 December 2017 the number of shares 
held by the ESOT was 742,682 (2016: 1,165,592). 

The accounting is in accordance with the relevant standards. No further information is given as the amounts for share based payments  
are immaterial.   

Executive share option scheme – ‘The Approved Scheme’ 
Executive share option scheme – ‘The Unapproved Scheme’ 

} Details can be found in the Directors’ 
Remuneration Report 

Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)  

Save As You Earn Scheme (SAYE)  Open to employees, vesting periods of three  
to five years, service condition 

   

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) 
 

Used to award part of Directors’ and senior  
managers’ bonuses in shares, vest after three years’ 
continued service 
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Section 7: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures 
In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of subsidiaries and equity accounted investments as at 31 December 
2017 is disclosed below. Unless otherwise stated, the Group’s ownership interest represents 100% of the ordinary shares, units or partnership 
capital held indirectly by Unite Group plc. No subsidiary undertakings have been excluded from the consolidation. All subsidiaries have  
a year end of 31 December with the exception of The UNITE Foundation which has a year end of 30 September to facilitate academic  
year reporting. 

Registered office: South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol, BS1 6FL  
Hiremaxi Limited (03128294)** 
LDC (AIB Warehouse) Limited (04872419) 
LDC (Alscot Road) Limited (06176428) 
LDC (Brunel House) Limited (09760628)** 
LDC (Camden Court Leasehold) Limited (5140620)** 
LDC (Camden Court) Limited (05082671)** 
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee no. 1) Limited ((05347228) 
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee no. 2) Limited (05359457) 
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee no. 3) Limited (08792780) 
LDC (Capital Cities Nominee no. 4) Limited (08792688) 
LDC (Capital Cities) Limited (05347220) 
LDC (Causewayend) Limited (08895966)** 
LDC (Chantry Court Leasehold) Limited (05140258)** 
LDC (Chaucer House) Limited (09898020)** 
LDC (Constitution Street) Limited (09210998)** 
LDC (Construction Two) Limited (04847268)** 
LDC (Cowley) Limited (10848961)** 
LDC (Curzon Street) Limited (04628271)** 
LDC (Euro Loan) Limited (06623603)** 
LDC (Far Gosford) Limited (09150149)** 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) GP 3 Limited (07503842)** 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) GP 4 Limited (07503913)** 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) Holdings Limited (07504099) 
LDC (Finance) Limited (09760806)** 
LDC (Frogmore Street) Limited* (03389585)** 
LDC (Greetham Street) Limited (08895825)** 
LDC (Gt Suffolk St) Limited Partnership 
LDC (Gt Suffolk St) Management Limited Partnership 
LDC (Gt Suffolk Street) GP1 Limited (07274156) 
LDC (Gt Suffolk Street) GP2 Limited (07274000) 
LDC (Gt Suffolk Street) Holdings Limited (07353946) 
LDC (Gt Suffolk Street) Management GP1 Limited 
(07354719) 
LDC (Gt Suffolk Street) Management GP2 Limited 
(07354728) 
LDC (Hampton Street) Limited (06415998)** 
LDC (Hillhead) Limited (06176554)** 
LDC (Holdings) Ltd (02625007)* 
LDC (Imperial Wharf) Limited (04541678)** 
LDC (International House) Limited (10131352)** 
LDC (James Watson Leasehold) Limited (03928026)** 
LDC (Kelham Island) Limited (05152229)** 
LDC (Leasehold A) Limited (04066933)** 
LDC (Leasehold B) Limited (05978242)** 
LDC (Loughborough) Limited (04207522) 
LDC (Magnet Court Leasehold) Limited (05140255)** 
LDC (Mansfield) Limited (06546446) 
LDC (Millennium View) Limited (09890375)** 
LDC (MTF Portfolio) Limited (05530557) 
LDC (Nairn Street) GP 3 Limited (07808933) 
LDC (Nairn Street) GP 4 Limited (07808919) 
LDC (Nairn Street) Holdings Limited (07579402)** 
LDC (Newgate) Limited (08895869)** 
LDC (New Wakefield Street) Limited (10436455)** 
LDC (Old Hospital) Limited (09702143)** 

LDC (Oxford Road Bournemouth) Limited (04407309)** 
LDC (Pitwines) Limited (05918624)** 
LDC (Portfolio 100) Limited (07989369) 
LDC (Portfolio 20) Limited (08803996) 
LDC (Portfolio Five Nominee) Limited (06017949)** 
LDC (Portfolio Five) Limited (06079581)** 
LDC (Portfolio Four) Limited (04985603) 
LDC (Portfolio One) Limited (03005262) 
LDC (Portfolio Ten) Limited (06877517)** 
LDC (Portfolio) Limited (08419375)** 
LDC (Project 110) Limited (05083580) 
LDC (Project 111) Limited (05791650) 
LDC (Radmarsh Road) Limited (05435290) 
LDC (River Street) Limited (10564295)** 
LDC (Skelhorne) Limited (09898132)** 
LDC (Smithfield) Limited (03373096)** 
LDC (St Leonards) Limited (08895830)** 
LDC (St Pancras Way) GP1 Limited (07359501) 
LDC (St Pancras Way) GP2 Limited (07359428) 
LDC (St Pancras Way) GP3 Limited (07503268) 
LDC (St Pancras Way) GP4 Limited (07503251) 
LDC (St Pancras Way) Holdings Limited (07360734)** 
LDC (St Pancras Way) Limited Partnership** 
LDC (St Pancras Way) Management Limited Partnership** 
LDC (St Vincents) Limited (10218310)** 
LDC (Swindon NHS) Limited (04027502)** 
LDC (Tara House) Limited (09214177)** 
LDC (Thurso Street) GP1 Limited (07199022)** 
LDC (Thurso Street) GP2 Limited (07198979)** 
LDC (Thurso Street) GP3 Limited (07434001)** 
LDC (Thurso Street) GP4 Limited (07434133)** 
LDC (Thurso Street) Limited Partnership 
LDC (Thurso Street) Management Limited Partnership**  
LDC (Tower North) Limited (10950123)** 
LDC (Ventura) Limited (0444628)** 
LDC (Vernon Square) Limited (06444132)** 
LDC (William Morris II) Limited (05999281) 
LDC Capital Cities Two (GP) Limited (08790742) 
LSAV (Angel Lane) GP3 Limited (08646359)** 
LSAV (Angel Lane) GP4 Limited (08646929)** 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) GP3 Limited (10498217) 
(50.00%) 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) GP4 Limited (10498484) 
(50.00%) 
LSAV (Stratford) GP3 Limited (08751654) 
LSAV (Stratford) GP4 Limited (08751629) 
LSAV (Wembley) GP3 Limited (08725127)** 
LSAV (Wembley) GP4 Limited (08725235)** 
LSAV Rent Collection Limited (08496230) 
LSAV (Stapleton) GP3 Limited (08646819) 
LSAV (Stapleton) GP4 Limited (08647019) 
Railyard GP Limited (06016486)** 
Railyard Student Accommodation Limited Partnership** 
Stardesert Limited (04437102) 
The UNITE Foundation 

Unite Accommodation Management 16 Limited 
(07061314)** 
Unite Accommodation Management 18 Limited 
(08328484)** 
Unite Accommodation Management 19 Limited 
(08790504) 
Unite Accommodation Management 2 Limited 
(05193166)** 
Unite Accommodation Management 20 Limited 
(08790642) 
Unite Accommodation Management 6 Limited (05077346) 
Unite Accommodation Management 8 Limited (05077315) 
Unite Accommodation Management 9 Limited 
(06190863)** 
Unite Accommodation Management Limited (06190905)** 
Unite Accommodation Management One Hundred 
Limited (07989080) 
UNITE Capital Cities Holdings Limited (08801242) 
UNITE Construction (Angel Lane) Limited (08792704)** 
UNITE Construction (Stapleton) Limited (09023406)** 
UNITE Construction (Wembley) Limited (09023474)** 
Unite Finance Limited* (04353305)** 
UNITE Finance One (Accommodation Services) Limited 
(04332937)** 
Unite Finance One (Holdings) Limited (04316207)** 
UNITE Finance One (Property) Limited (04303331)** 
UNITE FM Limited (06807562)** 
UNITE For Success Limited (05157263)** 
Unite Holdings Ltd* (03148468)** 
UNITE Homes Limited (05140262)** 
Unite Integrated Solutions plc (02402714) 
Unite Modular Solutions Limited (05140259)** 
Unite Rent Collection Limited (0598935)** 
UNITE Student Living Limited (06204135)** 
USAF GP No 11 Management Limited (07351883) 
USAF LP Limited (05860874)** 
USAF Management GP No 14 Limited (09130985)** 
USAF Management GP No.15 Limited (09749946) 
USAF Management GP No.16 Limited (09750068) 
USAF Management GP No.17 Limited (09750061) 
USAF Management 10 Limited (06714695) 
USAF Management 11 Limited (07082782) 
USAF Management 12 Limited (07365681) 
USAF Management 14 Limited (09232206) 
USAF Management 18 Limited (10219775) 
USAF Management 6 Limited (06225945) 
USAF Management 8 Limited (06387597) 
USAF Management Limited (05862721) 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) GP 1 Limited (07359448) (50.00%) 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) GP 2 Limited (07359481) (50.00%) 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) Management Limited Partnership 
(50.00%) 
LDC (Stratford) GP1 Limited (07547911) (50.00%) 
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Section 7: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continued 
Registered office: South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol, BS1 6FL
LDC (Stratford) GP2 Limited (07547994) (50.00%) 
LDC (Stratford) Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Angel Lane) GP1 Limited (08593689) (50.00%) 
LSAV (Angel Lane) GP2 Limited (08593692)(50.00%) 
LSAV (Angel Lane) Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Angel Lane) Management Limited Partnership 
(50.00%) 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) GP1 Limited (10498478) 
(50.00%) 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) GP2 Limited (10498481) 
(50.00%) 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) Management Limited 
Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Stapleton) Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Stapleton) Management Limited Partnership 
(50.00%) 
LSAV (Stratford) Management Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Wembley) GP1 Limited (08635735) (50.00%) 
LSAV (Wembley) GP2 Limited (08636051)(50.00%) 
LSAV (Wembley) Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
LSAV (Wembley) Management Limited Partnership 
(50.00%) 
LSAV(Stapleton) GP1 Limited (08593695)(50.00%) 
LSAV(Stapleton) GP2 Limited (08593699) (50.00%) 
Unite Capital Cities Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
Unite Capital Cities Two Limited Partnership (50.00%) 
USAF Management No. 15 Limited Partnership (24.90%) 
USAF Management No. 16 Limited Partnership (24.90%) 
USAF Management No. 17 Limited Partnership (24.90%) 

USAF No 15 Limited Partnership (24.90%) 
Filbert Village Student Accommodation Limited Partnership 
(24.60%) 
Forster Hall Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
Student Hall Nominees Limited (24.60%) 
USAF No 1 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 10 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 11 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 11 Management Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 12 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 14 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 14 Management Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 18 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 6 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
USAF No 8 Limited Partnership (24.60%) 
LDC (Nairn Street) Limited Partnership (24.50%) 
LDC (Nairn Street) Management Limited Partnership 
(24.50%) 
Filbert Village GP Limited (16.20%) 
LDC (Nairn Street) GP 1 Limited (16.20%) 
LDC (Nairn Street) GP 2 Limited (16.20%) 
USAF Finance II Limited (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 1 Limited (05897875) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 10 Limited (06714734) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 11 Limited (07075210) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 12 Limited (07368735) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 14 Limited (09189977) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 15 Limited (09585201) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 18 Limited (10219336) (16.20%) 

USAF GP No 6 Limited (05897755) (16.20%) 
USAF GP No 8 Limited (06381914) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings B Limited (06324325) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings C Limited (06381882) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings F Limited (07074623) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings G Limited (07365712) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings H Limited (09089805) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings I Limited (09581882) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings J Limited (10215997) (16.20%) 
USAF Holdings Limited (05870177) (16.20%) 
USAF Nominee No 1 Limited (05855598) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 10 Limited (06714690) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 10A Limited (06714615) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 11 Limited (07075251) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 11A Limited (07075251) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 12 Limited (07368733) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 12A Limited (07368753) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 14 Limited (09231609) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 14A Limited (09231604) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 18 Limited (10218595) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 18A Limited (10219339) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 1A Limited (05835512) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 6 Limited (05855599) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 6A Limited (05885802) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 8 Limited (06381861) (24.90%) 
USAF Nominee No 8A Limited (06381869) (24.90%) 
USAF RCC Limited (05983554)(16.20%)

 
Registered office: 13 Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE4 5UT
LDC (Gt Suffolk St) Unit Trust 
LDC (St Pancras Way) Unit Trust 
LDC (Thurso Street) Unit Trust 
LSAV (Jersey Manager) Limited 
Unite (Capital Cities) Jersey Limited 
UNITE Jersey Issuer Limited* 

USAF Jersey Investments Limited 
USAF Jersey Manager Limited 
LDC (Ferry Lane 2) Unit Trust (50.00%) 
LDC (Stratford) Unit Trust (50.00%) 
LSAV (Holdings) Limited (50.00%) 
LSAV (Trustee) Limited (50.00%) 

LSAV Unit Trust (50.00%) 
LSAV (Aston Student Village) Unit Trust (50.00%) 
UNITE Capital Cities Unit Trust (50.00%) 
USAF Portfolio 18 Unit Trust (24.60%) 
LDC (Nairn Street) Unit Trust (24.50%) 
UNITE UK Student Accommodation Fund (16.2%)

 
Registered office: Third Floor, La Plaiderie Chambers, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WG
USAF Feeder Guernsey Limited (45.20%) 
USAF Portfolio 15 Unit Trust (24.90%) 

USAF Portfolio 16 Unit Trust (24.90%)   
USAF 15 NRL Limited (24.8%)  

USAF Portfolio 17 Unit Trust (24.90%)

 
Registered office: Third Floor, Barclays House, Victoria Street, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM1 2LE
The Railyard Student Accommodation Unit Trust Filbert Street Student Accommodation Unit Trust (24.60%)
 
Registered office: Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, EH1 2 EN
LSAV (GP) Limited (50.00%) LSAV (Property Holdings) LP (50.00%)  
 

* Held directly by the Company. 
**  The company is exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the audit of individual financial statements by virtue of s479A for the 

financial year ended 31 December 2017. 
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 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

EPRA NAV per share (pence) 720 646 579  434  382  
IFRS NAV per share (pence) 717 653 574  416  370  
EPRA net assets (£m) 1,740 1,557 1,394 881  682  
      
IFRS net assets (£m) 1,729 1,452 1,275  843  653  
      
Managed portfolio value (£m) 4,612 4,327 3,827  2,951  2,736  
LTV (%) 31% 34% 35% 43%  49%  
EPRA earnings (£m) 71 61 50 33  23  
Profit/(loss) before tax (£m) 229 201 388 108  77  
      
EPRA earnings per share (pence)  30 28 29 17 18  
Adjusted EPRA earnings per share (pence)  30 28 23 17  14  
IFRS earnings per share (pence) 95.3 101 164 53  46  
 

FINANCIAL RECORD
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The UNITE Group plc (the Company) will be held at the Company’s 
registered office at South Quay, Temple Back, Bristol, BS1 6FL at 9.30 a.m. on 10 May 2018 for the purpose of considering and, if thought 
fit, passing Resolutions 1 to 15 as ordinary resolutions and Resolutions 16 to 18 as special resolutions.

Ordinary resolutions
Annual Report and Accounts
1.	 To receive the audited annual accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 together with the Directors’ report, 

the strategic report and the auditor’s report on those annual accounts (the Annual Report and Accounts).

Directors’ Remuneration Report
2.	 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained within the Annual Report and Accounts.

Final dividend
3.	 To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of 15.4p per ordinary share payable on 18 May 2018 to 

shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 13 April 2018.

Scrip dividend
 4. THAT the Directors be and are generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise the power contained in Article 142 of the 

Company’s Articles of Association so that they may offer to any holders of ordinary shares of the Company the right to elect 
to receive ordinary shares credited as fully paid, in whole or in part instead of cash in respect of the whole or some part of any 
dividend declared or to be declared by the Company on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Directors, and 
that such authority commence from the date of approval of this resolution and expire at the beginning of the third Annual General 
Meeting of the Company after the date on which this resolution is passed.

Re-election of Directors 
5.	 To re-elect Mr P M White as a Director of the Company.
6.	 To re-elect Mr R S Smith as a Director of the Company.
7.	 To re-elect Mr J J Lister as a Director of the Company.
8.	 To re-elect Mr R C Simpson as a Director of the Company.
9.	 To re-elect Sir Tim Wilson as a Director of the Company.
10. To re-elect Mr A Jones as a Director of the Company.
11.	To re-elect Ms Elizabeth McMeikan as a Director of the Company.
12.	To elect Mr R Paterson as a Director of the Company.

Auditors 
13.	To reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditor of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next General Meeting at which 

accounts are laid before the Company.
14.	To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditor.

Authority to allot shares
15.	THAT, in substitution for any equivalent authorities and powers granted to the Directors prior to the passing of this Resolution, the 

Directors be and are generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act):

(a)	To exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company, and grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security 
into shares of the Company (such shares, and rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares of the Company being 
“relevant securities”), up to an aggregate nominal amount of £21,920,868 (representing approximately one third of the nominal 
value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date of this notice), such amount to be reduced by the 
nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under paragraph (b) below in excess of £21,920,868;

(b)	To allot equity securities (as defined in Section 560(1) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £43,841,737 
(representing approximately two thirds of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date 
of this notice) (such amount to be reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under paragraph (a) 
above) in connection with an offer by way of rights issue:
(i)	 In favour of holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company, where the equity securities respectively attributable to 

the interests of such holders are proportionate (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares in the 
capital of the Company held by them.

(ii)	To holders of any other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as the Directors otherwise consider 
necessary but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal 
with in relation to treasury shares, fractional entitlements or legal, regulatory or practical problems arising under the laws or 
requirements of any overseas territory or by virtue of shares being represented by depository receipts or the requirements of 
any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter whatsoever, provided that this authority shall expire 
(unless previously renewed, varied, extended or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 15 months 
from the passing of this Resolution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held following the passing of this Resolution, save that the Company may at any time before such expiry make an offer or 
enter into an agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors 
may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired.
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Special resolutions
Authority to disapply pre-emption rights
16.	That if Resolution 15 (Authority to allot shares) is passed, the Board be authorised to allot equity securities (as defined in the 

Companies Act 2006) for cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Company as 
treasury shares for cash as if section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 did not apply to any such allotment or sale, such authority to 
be limited: 

(a)	to allotments for rights issues and other pre-emptive issues; and 
(b)	to the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares (otherwise than under paragraph (a) above) up to a nominal 

amount of £3,288,130 (this amount representing not more than 5 per cent of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share 
capital of the Company as at the date of this notice),

such authority to expire at the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier, at the close of business 
on 9 August 2019, this being the date which is fifteen months after the date of this meeting) but, in each case, prior to its expiry the 
Company may make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities to be allotted (and treasury 
shares to be sold) after the authority expires and the Board may allot equity securities (and sell treasury shares) under any such offer 
or agreement as if the authority had not expired.

17.	That if Resolution 15 (Authority to allot shares) is passed, the Board be authorised in addition to any authority granted under Article 
16 to allot equity securities (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) for cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or to 
sell ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as if section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 did not apply to 
any such allotment or sale, such authority to be: 

(a)	limited to the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares up to a nominal amount of £3,288,130 (this amount 
representing not more than 5 per cent of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the 
date of this notice); and 

(b)	used only for the purposes of financing (or refinancing, if the authority is to be used within six months after the original 
transaction) a transaction which the Board of the Company determines to be an acquisition or other capital investment of a 
kind contemplated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the Pre-Emption 
Group prior to the date of this notice,

such authority to expire at the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier, at the close of business on 
9 August 2019, this being the date which is fifteen months after the date of this meeting) but, in each case, prior to its expiry the 
Company may make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities to be allotted (and treasury 
shares to be sold) after the authority expires and the Board may allot equity securities (and sell treasury shares) under any such offer 
or agreement as if the authority had not expired.

Notice of General Meetings
18.	THAT, a general meeting other than an Annual General Meeting, may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice. 

By order of the Board

Christopher Szpojnarowicz
Company Secretary
26 February 2018

Registered office:
South Quay House
Temple Back
Bristol 
BS1 6FL

Registered in England and Wales with registered number 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Notes
1.	 A member of the Company who wishes to attend the meeting in person should arrive at South Quay, Temple Back, Bristol, BS1 6FL 

6GD in good time before the meeting, which will commence at 9.30 a.m. In order to gain admittance to the meeting, members 
may be required to produce their attendance card, which is attached to the form of proxy enclosed with this document, or 
otherwise prove their identity.

2.	 A member of the Company who is entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting and who is unable or does not wish to attend 
the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of his/her rights to attend and to speak and vote on his/her behalf at 
the meeting. A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to different 
shares (so a member must have more than one share to be able to appoint more than one proxy). A proxy need not be a member of 
the Company but must attend the meeting to represent his/her appointing member. Appointing a proxy will not prevent a member 
from attending in person and voting at the meeting although voting in person at the meeting will terminate a member’s proxy 
appointment. A proxy must vote in accordance with any instructions given by the member by whom the proxy is appointed. A form 
of proxy which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions accompanies this notice. You can only appoint 
a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and the notes to the proxy form.

3.	 To be valid, any form of proxy, and the original or duly certified copy of the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under 
which it is signed or authenticated, must be received by hand or by post at Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, 
Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS99 6ZY, no later than 09.30 a.m. on 8 May 2018.

4.	 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the 
meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by following the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or 
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider, should refer to their 
CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

5.	 In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a CREST 
Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s (Euroclear) specifications, 
and must contain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of 
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy, the revocation of a proxy or is an amendment to the instruction given to a 
previously appointed proxy must, in order to be a valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s agent (CREST ID 
3RA50) by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified in note 3 above. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be 
taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) from which the 
Company’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any 
change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

6.	 CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers, should note that Euroclear does not 
make available special procedures in CREST for any particular message. Normal system timings and limitations will, therefore, 
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the 
CREST member is a CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider, to procure that his/
her CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by 
means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors 
or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the 
CREST system and timings.

7.	 The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated 
Securities Regulations 2001 (as amended).

8.	 If you would like to submit your proxy vote via the internet, you can do so by accessing our registrar’s website  
(www.eproxyappointment.com). You will require the control number, your unique PIN (which will expire at the end of the voting 
period) and your Shareholder Reference Number (SRN), printed on the proxy card, in order to log in and submit your proxy vote 
electronically. You can access this site from any internet enabled PC. If you submit your proxy via the internet it should reach the 
registrar by 09.30 a.m. on 8 May 2018. Should you complete your proxy form electronically and then post a hard copy, the form that 
arrives last will be counted to the exclusion of instructions received earlier, whether electronic or posted. Please refer to the terms 
and conditions of the service on the website.

9.	 In the case of joint holders of shares, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment 
submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders 
appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior).

10.	If you submit more than one valid proxy appointment in respect of the same shares, the appointment received last before the 
latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.

11.	Any person to whom this notice has been sent who is a person nominated under section 146 of the Act to enjoy information rights 
(a Nominated Person) may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated, have a 
right to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the meeting. If a Nominated Person has no such proxy 
appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to the 
shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights.
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12.	The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies above does not apply to Nominated Persons. 
These rights can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

13.	Pursuant to Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 and Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (as amended), the 
Company specifies that only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company at 5.00 p.m. on 8 May 2018 (or, if 
the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours before the timed fixed for the adjourned meeting) shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting 
in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. In each case, changes to the register of members of the 
Company after such time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting. 

14.	As at the date of this notice, the Company’s issued share capital comprised 263,050,423 ordinary shares carrying one vote each at 
a general meeting of the Company. No ordinary shares were held in treasury and therefore the total voting rights in the Company 
as at the date of this notice are 263,050,423.

15.	You may not use any electronic address provided either in this notice of meeting or any related documents (including the proxy 
form) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.

16.	Members attending the meeting have the right to ask and, subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company must cause to be 
answered, any questions relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting.

17.	The following information is available at www.unite-group.co.uk (1) the matters set out in this notice of Annual General Meeting;
(2)	the total numbers of shares in the Company in respect of which members are entitled to exercise voting rights at the meeting;
(3)	the totals of the voting rights that members are entitled to exercise at the meeting; and (4) members’ statements, members’ 
resolutions and members’ matters of business received by the Company after the date on which notice of the meeting was given.

18.	It is possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of the Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company may be 
required to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to: (a) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including 
the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the meeting; or (b) any circumstance connected with 
an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports were laid in 
accordance with Section 437 of the Act. The Company may not require the members requesting any such website publication 
to pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Company is required to place a statement on a 
website under Section 527 of the Act, it must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than the time when it makes 
the statement available on the website. The business which may be dealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the 
Company has been required under Section 527 of the Act to publish on a website.

19.	In accordance with Section 338 of the Act, a member or members of the Company may (provided that the criteria set out in 
Section 338(3) of the Act are met) require the Company to give to members notice of a resolution which may properly be moved 
and is intended to be moved at the meeting, provided that: (a) the resolution must not be, if passed, ineffective (whether by reason 
of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s constitution or otherwise); and (b) the resolution must not be defamatory of 
any person, frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form, must be authenticated by the 
person or persons making it, must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given and must be received by the Company not 
later than six weeks before the meeting, or, if later, the time at which notice is given of the meeting. (In the foregoing sentence, the 
terms ‘hard copy form’, ‘electronic form’ and ‘authenticated’ bear their respective meanings set out in the Act in relation to a 
communication, or a document or information sent or supplied, to a company.)

20.	In accordance with Section 338A of the Act, a member or members of the Company may (provided that the criteria set out in Section 
338A (3) of the Act are met) require the Company to include in the business to be dealt with at the meeting a matter (other than a 
proposed resolution) which may properly be included in the business of the meeting, provided that the matter is not defamatory of 
any person, frivolous or vexatious. A request may be in hard copy form or electronic form, must identify the matter to be included in 
the business, must be accompanied by a statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the person or 
persons making it and must be received by the Company not later than six weeks before the meeting, or, if later, the time at which 
notice is given of the AGM. (In the foregoing sentence, the terms ‘hard copy form’, ‘electronic form’ and ‘authenticated’ bear 
the respective meanings set out in the Act in relation to a communication, or a document or information sent or supplied, 
to a company.)

21.	A member that is a company or other organisation not having a physical presence cannot attend in person but can appoint 
someone to represent it. This can be done in one of two ways: either by the appointment of a proxy (as described in the notes 
above) or of a corporate representative. Members considering the appointment of a corporate representative should check 
their own legal position, the Company’s articles of association and the relevant provisions of the Act.

22.	The following documents are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours on 
any weekday (Saturday, Sunday or public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the conclusion of the meeting and 
will also be available for inspection at the place of the meeting from 9.15 a.m. on the day of the meeting until its conclusion:

(a)	copies of the executive directors’ service contracts with the Company and any of its subsidiary undertakings; and
(b)	letters of appointment of the non-executive directors.
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Adjusted EPRA earnings 
Adjusted EPRA earnings are prepared on 
the basis of EPRA earnings excluding the 
yield related element of the USAF 
performance fee. 

Adjusted EPRA earnings per share 
The earnings per share based on adjusted 
EPRA earnings. 

Adjusted net debt 
The Group’s debt, net of cash and 
unamortised debt raising costs, excluding 
the mark to market of interest rates swaps. 

Adjusted gearing 
The adjusted net debt as a percentage 
of the value of Unite properties. 

Basis points (BPS) 
A basis point is a term used to describe a 
small percentage, usually in the context 
of change, and equates to 0.01%. 

Direct let 
Properties where short-hold tenancy 
agreements are made directly between 
Unite and the student. 

EBITDA 
The Group’s EPRA earnings before charging 
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation. 
The profit number is used to calculate the 
ratio to net debt. 

EPRA earnings 
EPRA earnings are prepared on the basis 
recommended for real estate companies 
by EPRA, the European Public Real Estate 
Association. This excludes movements 
relating to changes in values of investment 
properties and interest rate swaps and the 
related tax effects. 

EPRA earnings per share 
The earnings per share based on 
EPRA  earnings. 

EPRA NAV 
EPRA NAV is prepared on the basis 
recommended for real estate companies 
by EPRA, the European Public Real Estate 
Association. This includes all property at 
market value but excludes the mark to market 
of interest rate swaps. This is recommended by 
EPRA as a measure of net assets. 

EPRA net asset value per share 
The diluted NAV per share figure based 
on EPRA NAV. 

EPRA NNNAV 
As EPRA NAV but includes both debt and 
interest rate swaps carried at market value. 
This is recommended by EPRA as a ‘spot’ fair 
value net asset measure. 

Financing costs 
Gross financing costs net of interest 
capitalised into developments and 
interest received on deposits. 

Gross asset value 
The Group’s wholly owned property portfolio 
together with the share of the Joint Ventures 
property portfolio. 

Gross financing costs 
This includes all interest paid by the 
Group, including those capitalised 
into developments and operating 
lease rentals. 

It includes all receipts and payments under 
interest rate swaps whether they are effective 
or ineffective under IFRS as economically 
they all hedge interest rate exposures. 

Interest cover ratio (ICR) 
The interest cover ratio is the income 
generated by a property as a multiple of 
the interest charge on the debt secured 
on the property. 

Lease 
Properties which are leased to Universities 
for a number of years and have no Unite 
management presence. 

Like-for-like rental growth
Like-for-like rental growth is the growth 
in net operating income on properties 
owned throughout the current and 
previous years under review. 

Loan to value (LTV)
The Loan to value (LTV) ratio is the 
debt on properties as a proportion of 
the carrying value of the total property 
portfolio. This ratio is calculated on the basis 
of EPRA net assets.

LSAV 
The London Student Accommodation Joint 
Venture (LSAV) is a joint venture between 
Unite and GIC, alongside UCC. Both Unite 
and GIC have a 50% stake and LSAV has 
the same maturity date as UCC (September 
2022). It is the primary vehicle through which 
Unite undertakes development activity in 
London and it has right of first refusal over 
Unite’s London development pipeline 
projects until such time as its capital 
investment targets are met. LSAV and UCC 
were merged during 2012 and the new 
combined entity is referred to as LSAV. 

Net debt
The Group debt, net of cash and 
unamortised debt raising costs on the 
basis of EPRA net assets

Net debt: EBITDA 
The Group debt, net of cash and 
unamortised debt raising costs and 
excluding mark to market of interest rate 
swaps as a proportion of EBITDA. 

Net initial yield (NIY or yield) 
The net operating income generated by 
a property expressed as a percentage of 
its value, taking into account notional 
acquisition costs. 

Net operating income (NOI) 
The rental income from rental properties 
less those operating costs directly related 
to the property, therefore excluding 
central overhead. 

Net rental growth 
The annual growth in net operating 
income (measured on a like-for-like basis, 
ie excluding impact of completion 
and disposals). 

Nominations 
Properties where Universities have entered 
into a contract to guarantee occupancy. 
The Universities nominate students to live in 
the building and Unite enters into short-hold 
tenancies with the students. 

Non-core assets 
Properties that do not fit with the Group’s 
long-term investment strategy because 
of their location or their size. 

Overhead efficiency 
The Group’s overhead efficiency 
measure shows operating expenses, 
net of management fees, as a proportion 
of the total property portfolio. 

Rental properties 
Investment and completed properties 
whose construction has been completed 
and are used by the Operations segment 
to generate net portfolio contribution. 

Sale and leaseback 
Properties that have been sold to a third 
party investor then leased back to the 
Company. Unite is also responsible for the 
management of these assets on behalf of 
the owner. 

Total accounting return
This is the growth in EPRA NAV per share plus 
dividends paid, and this is expressed as a 
percentage of EPRA NAV per share at the 
beginning of the period.

USAF/THE FUND 
The Unite UK Student Accommodation Fund 
(USAF) is Europe’s largest fund that purely 
focuses on completed income providing 
student accommodation investment assets. 
The fund is an open-ended infinite life vehicle 
which has unique buying access to Unite’s 
development pipeline. Unite acts as fund 
manager for the fund, as well as owning a 
significant minority stake. 

GLOSSARY
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Unite Group Executive Team 
Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer 

Joe Lister 
Chief Financial Officer 

Richard Simpson 
Group Property Director 

Registered Office 
South Quay House, Temple Back, Bristol 
BS1 6FL 

Registered Number in England 
03199160 

Company Secretary 
Christopher Szpojnarowicz 

Auditor
Deloitte LLP
2 New Street Square, London EC4 3BZ 

Financial Advisers 
J.P. Morgan Cazenove 
25 Bank Street, London E14 5JP 

Numis Securities 
The London Stock Exchange Building 
10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LT 

Registrars
Computershare Investor Services plc 
PO Box 82
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 7NH 

Financial PR Consultants 
Powerscourt
1 Tudor Street, London, EC4Y OAH

COMPANY INFORMATION 

THIS REPORT IS COMPLEMENTED BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION ABOUT OUR 
BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS, OUR MARKETS, 
AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY. 

 Find out more online at www.unite-group.co.uk
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